
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

HOUSTON DIVISION 

 
 
 
 

 
 

CONSOLIDATED CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

 
 
Plaintiffs sue individually and on behalf of all those similarly situated. Their allegations are upon 
personal knowledge as to their own acts. Other matters are alleged based upon the investigation 
conducted by counsel as detailed below. 

This class action against Service Corporation International ("SCI" or the "Company") and certain of its 
present and former officers and directors is prosecuted on behalf of all members of the class certified by 
the Court on August 25, 1999 (the "Class") who were damaged by defendants' violations of the federal 
securities laws. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. This action arises under Sections 11,12(a)(2) and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities 
Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 77(k), 77(1)(2) and 77(o); Sections 10(b), 20(a) and 20A of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b), 78t(a) and 78t-1, and the rules and regulations 
promulgated thereunder, including Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R. 
240.10b-5. 

2. Jurisdiction exists under 15 U.S.C. § 77v, 15 U.S.C. § 78aa; and 28 U.S.C. § 1331. 

3. Venue is proper in this district under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391 (b) and (c) as acts, transactions and wrongful 
conduct alleged herein, including the dissemination to the investing public of the materially false and 
misleading statements at issue, occurred in substantial part in this District. In addition, the principal 
offices of SCI are located in this District. 

4. Defendants, directly or indirectly, used the mails and instrumentalities of interstate commerce in 
connection with the acts and conduct alleged in the Complaint. 

 
 
 
 
In re: SERVICE CORPORATION INTERNATIONAL 
 

 
 
 
 
Civil Action No. H-99-280 
 
JURY DEMANDED 
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THE PARTIES 

5. Rujira Srisythep, Carl Helwig, and Allan Lisse were appointed as Lead Plaintiffs by this Court's order 
dated June 9, 1999. On August 25, 1999, the Court certified them as Class representatives. Each Lead 
Plaintiff purchased SCI common stock during the Class Period (July 17, 1998 through January 26, 1999) 
and was damaged thereby. 

6. Defendant SCI is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Texas. Its 
principal executive offices are at 1929 Allen Parkway, Houston, Texas. SCI purports to be the world's 
largest provider of death care services. At December 31, 1998, SCI operated 3,442 funeral service 
locations, 433 cemeteries, and 191 crematoria located in 20 countries on five continents. 

7. At all relevant times, defendant R.L. Waltrip ("Waltrip") was SCI's Chairman of the Board and Chief 
Executive Officer. Waltrip signed the materially false and misleading Amendment No. 1 to Form S-4 
Registration Statement containing a Proxy Statement/Prospectus, filed with the SEC on or about 
November 19, 1998 (the "Registration Statement/Prospectus"). The Registration Statement/Prospectus 
was declared effective on November 20, 1998. Waltrip also made numerous materially false and 
misleading statements to the public via media reports and press releases issued by the Company during 
the Class Period as alleged herein. 

8. At all relevant times, defendant George R. Champagne ("Champagne") was SCI's Senior Vice 
President and Chief Financial Officer. Champagne signed the materially false and misleading: (i) Form 
10-Q Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(D) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the 
Quarterly Period Ended June 10, 1998, filed with the SEC on August 14, 1998 (the "1998 Q2 10-Q"); 
(ii) Form 10-Q Quarterly Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15 (D) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 for the Quarterly Period Ended September 30, 1998, filed with the SEC on November 16, 1998 
(the "1998 Q3 10-Q"); and Registration Statement/Prospectus. Champagne also made numerous 
materially false and misleading statements to the public via media reports and press releases issued by 
the Company during the Class Period as alleged herein. 

9. At all relevant times, defendant L. William Heiligbrodt ("Heiligbrodt") was SCI's President and Chief 
Operating Officer. Heiligbrodt signed the materially false and misleading Registration 
Statement/Prospectus. Heiligbrodt also made numerous materially false and misleading statements to the 
public via media reports and press releases issued by the Company during the Class Period as alleged 
herein. Heiligbrodt left the employment of the Company shortly after the disclosure of the adverse 
information alleged herein. 

10. Defendants Waltrip, Champagne and Heiligbrodt are sometimes collectively referred to as the 
"Individual Defendants." 

11. The Individual Defendants, by reason of their stock ownership, management positions, and/or 
membership on the Company's Board of Directors and committees thereof, had control over the 
operations of the Company and had the power and/or ability to control each of the wrongful acts and 
practices complained of herein. The Individual Defendants exercised such power and control to commit 
the wrongful acts complained of herein, including making materially false and misleading statements 
and material omissions in statements to the media, the Company's press releases, quarterly SEC filings, 
and the Registration Statement/Prospectus. The Individual Defendants were, "control persons" of SCI 
within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act and Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. 

12. As a result of their positions with SCI, the Individual Defendants had access to undisclosed adverse 
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information throughout the Class Period about SCI's multi-million dollar backlog of unprofitable 
preneed funeral business and the impact this backlog had, and would continue to have, on SCI's 
profitability. They had access to such information through: (a) internal corporate documents; 
(b) corporate profit/loss information conveyed directly to corporate headquarters from each of the 
Company's domestic funeral homes on a next-day basis, via, the Company's proprietary "Falcon" 
computer system; (c) conversations and communications with other corporate officers and employees; 
(d) attendance at management and/or meetings of the Board and committees thereof; and (e) daily, 
weekly and monthly reports such as SCI's "Call In Reports" which provided them with profit and loss 
information on each of SCI's domestic funeral homes, and other information provided in connection 
therewith. 

13. It is appropriate to treat the Individual Defendants as a group for pleading purposes and to presume 
that the materially false, misleading and incomplete information conveyed in the company's public 
filings, press releases and other publications as alleged herein are the collective actions of the Individual 
Defendants identified above. 

14. The Individual Defendants made and were involved in drafting, reviewing and/or disseminating the 
materially false and misleading statements and information alleged herein. Each of the Individual 
Defendants was provided with copies of the documents alleged herein to be misleading prior to their 
issuance and/or had the ability and/or opportunity to prevent their issuance or cause them to be 
corrected. Accordingly, each of the Individual Defendants is responsible for the accuracy of the public 
reports, press releases, and statements detailed herein and is therefore primarily liable for the materially 
false representations and omissions contained therein. 

15. As officers and/or directors and controlling persons of a public company whose securities were 
registered with the SEC and governed by the federal securities laws, the Individual Defendants each had 
a duty to disseminate promptly accurate and truthful information with respect to the Company's 
business, operations, financial condition, management, earnings, and present and future business 
prospects, and to correct any previously issued statements that had become materially false and 
misleading so that the market price of the Company's publicly traded securities would be based upon 
truthful, accurate and complete information. The Individual Defendants' material misrepresentations and 
omissions, and failures to correct, during the Class Period violated these specific requirements and 
obligations as alleged below. 

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS 

SCI's Funeral Home Consolidator Business Model 

16. Throughout the 1990s, thousands of locally-owned family operated independent funeral homes have 
been acquired by major corporations known in the funeral industry as "funeral home consolidators." The 
three largest publicly traded funeral home consolidators are SCI, Loewen Group Inc. ("Loewen"), and 
Metarie, Louisiana-based Stewart Enterprises Inc. ("Stewart"). 

17. All funeral home consolidators employ a relatively standard business model. SCI's model consists of 
acquiring several independently owned and locally managed funeral homes in one geographic area and 
then sharing labor and equipment among this "cluster" to cut costs. As reported in SCI's Form 10-K for 
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998, filed with the SEC on March 31, 1999 (the "SCI 1998 Form 
10-K"): 
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the majority of the Company's funeral service locations and cemeteries are managed in groups called 
clusters. Clusters are established primarily in metropolitan areas to take advantage of operational 
efficiencies, including the sharing of [operating expenses such as] service personnel, vehicles, 
preparation services, clerical staff and certain building facility costs. 

 
 
18. Once SCI acquires a funeral home, the public often is unaware of any change in ownership. By SCI's 
own design, the original family owners and employees usually remain and continue to operate the SCI-
acquired funeral home under the original family name. This semblance of continuity is essential to SCI 
retaining the goodwill and future business of a client base largely loyal to the funeral homes' original 
family owners. 

SCI Acquires Thousands of Independent Funeral Homes 

19. According to SCI's 1998 Form 10-K, "[SCI] is the largest provider of death care services in the 
world. At December 31, 1998, the Company operated 3,442 funeral service locations, 433 cemeteries 
and 191 crematoria located in 20 countries on five continents." However, SCI was not always this large. 

20. SCI's funeral empire is a creature of an acquisition campaign SCI has waged since the early 1990s. 
The following table illustrates the annual growth in the number of funeral homes owned by SCI 
throughout the 1990s: 

 
 
21. In acquiring a funeral home, SCI typically acquires all assets and assumes all liabilities of the 
acquired funeral home while paying the funeral home owner in cash, SCI securities, or some 
combination thereof. 

Pre-Need Funeral Services 

22. The assets purchased by SCI in a typical funeral home acquisition transaction included "preneed" or 
"guaranteed price" funeral contracts entered into by the independent funeral homes during the years 
those homes were independently operated. Preneed funeral contracts generally govern an arrangement 
where individuals purchase their funeral arrangements prior to their death, and funeral homes agree to 
perform the funeral service in the future for payment of a fixed sum that is paid at the time the contract 

Year Number of Funeral Homes Acquired 
1990 45
1991 164
1992 54
1993 124
1994 674
1995 1,263
1996 210
1997 294
1998 308
Total 2,873
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is entered into, or over time pursuant to an installment payment schedule. The contractual obligation to 
perform these guaranteed price funerals in the future was typically reflected as a liability on the books of 
the independent funeral homes prior to their acquisition by SCI. Once acquired, SCI assumed this future 
liability. 23. In connection with each acquisition, SCI also acquired the mortuary trust assets that 
eventually are used to pay for the preneed funerals. At the time the preneed funeral contracts were sold 
to prospective clients, the independent funeral homes typically established mortuary trusts, funded with 
payments from the prospective clients. The total funds, or trust principal, generally were less than the 
then-current cost of providing the funeral service because preneed funeral services were often sold at a 
discount. The trust principal was routinely invested in a certificate of deposit issued by a bank and 
redeemable only upon the death of the prospective client. To the extent that the principal and income 
generated by the trust equals or exceeds the ultimate cost of performing the funeral service, the funeral 
home will either break-even or realize a profit. If, on the other hand, the mortuary trust assets do not 
grow to equal or exceed the future cost of performing the service, then the funeral service will be 
performed at the contractually agreed upon price, resulting in a loss for the funeral home performing the 
service. 

24. The practice of selling preneed funeral contracts began to gain increasing acceptance in the late 
1980s. At this time and throughout the 1990s, the vast majority of the nation's funeral homes were 
independently owned and operated and lacked the financial sophistication to perform any meaningful 
analysis aimed at determining whether the assets invested in the mortuary trusts would generate a real 
rate of return in excess of the amount necessary to cover future increases in the cost of providing a price 
guaranteed funeral service. As a result, the funds invested in these mortuary trusts were often not 
actively managed - if they were managed at all - and the answer to whether such funds would grow 
sufficiently to equal or exceed the cost of providing a price guaranteed funeral service at some future 
date was left to happenstance. Industry sources have confirmed that the financial management of these 
mortuary trust assets often consisted of little more than opening a certificate of deposit at a local bank 
and then throwing the preneed contract into a drawer where it remained essentially untouched until the 
prospective client passed away. 

25. While the financial impact of such a laissez-faire approach to mortuary trust asset management may 
have been relatively insignificant during periods of high prevailing interest rates and relatively low 
funeral home cost inflation, these practices have had a severely negative impact on funeral home profit 
margins during the protracted period of declining interest rates and escalating funeral home costs, such 
as those experienced throughout the 1990s. 

26. By way of example, interest rates on 24 month certificates of deposit stood as high as 8.21% in 
1990, however, by 1998 they had fallen to as low as 4.22%. Conversely, the costs associated with 
providing funeral services increased at an average annual rate of 8.5% during this same time period. As 
a result, funeral homes that entered into guaranteed price funeral contracts, but failed to actively manage 
their mortuary trust assets during this time period, amassed multi-million dollar preneed funeral 
backlogs that would eventually be performed at break-even - or a loss - resulting in a drastic, negative 
impact on profit margins. 

SCI Fails To Disclose That It Has Amassed A Multi-Million Dollar Backlog 

of Unprofitable Preneed Funerals By Acquiring Thousands of 

Independent Funeral Homes That Failed To Manage These Preneed Funds 
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27. It is well known in the death services industry that the failure to actively manage preneed contract 
trust funds can have disastrous effects on a company's financial position. As one industry analyst 
recognized as early as March 1997: 

You see there is one basic problem with preneed - the money. Regardless of how you finance 
prearranged funerals - trusts, insurance or some combination - the amount of the funeral at-need and the 
amount available to finance it will never be exactly the same. Sometimes the difference may be only a 
few dollars or it could be several hundred dollars. Trusts and insurance will naturally grow at a different 
rate than funeral prices. Therefore, there will always be only two possibilities. Either there will be too 
little money to finance the service at current prices, or there will be an overage. 

 
 
If there is a shortfall, it is the funeral home that must absorb that shortage. No trust or insurance 
company will be willing to make up the difference. We can rationalize it in any number of ways, but a 
shortage is a shortage and must be accounted for somewhere, either through an increase of at-need 
prices or decreased profit. But what would happen to your funeral home if every funeral you did 
this year had been funded 10 years ago? There is no way to recover the shortages. How would you 
survive? While it may be unrealistic to think that someday all funerals will be prefunded, isn't that the 
direction we are encouraging through our preneed marketing efforts? [Emphasis added]. 

 
 
Curtis Rostad, Preneed: Here Today, Gone Tomorrow, The Director (March 1997). 

28. The "direction" that Mr. Rostad found the industry "encouraging" is precisely the direction taken by 
SCI during the 1990s. Significantly, by 1998, SCI had acquired ownership of more than 2,873 
independent funeral homes during the preceding eight years. In doing so, SCI amassed a multi-billion 
dollar backlog of preneed funeral contracts. Indeed, between 1992 and 1998, in just a six-year period, 
SCI's prearranged funeral contract backlog increased three-fold, from $1.2 billion to $3.7 billion. The 
chart that follows depicts the explosive growth in the dollar value of prearranged funeral contracts 
acquired and sold by SCI, as well as SCI's preneed funeral contract backlog between 1992 and 1998: 

 
 

Year 

 
 
 
 

Prearranged Funeral Contracts Acquired

 
 
 
 

Prearranged Funeral 

Services Sold 

Value of Prearranged 

Funeral 

Contracts Backlog 

12/31/92 $24 million $119 million $1.2 billion
12/31/93 $60 million $159 million $1.3 billion
12/31/94 $127 million $245 million $1.5 billion
12/31/95 $656 million $371 million $2.3 billion
12/31/96 $72 million $512 million $2.7 billion
12/31/97 $102 million $529 million $3.3 billion
12/31/98 $138 million $490 million $3.7 billion
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29. Undisclosed to the Class was the fact that a material number of independent funeral homes acquired 
by SCI throughout the 1990s were among those that had failed to actively manage their mortuary trust 
assets to insure that such assets would equal or exceed the cost of providing the guaranteed price 
funerals in the future. As a result, each time SCI acquired ownership of another independent funeral 
home, SCI had, unbeknownst to the Class, also acquired countless numbers of unprofitable guaranteed 
price funeral contracts that had long-ago been entered into by the independent funeral homes. 
Significantly, all of these unprofitable funerals would eventually have to be performed by SCI. 

30. Also undisclosed to the Class throughout the Class Period was the fact that SCI failed to establish 
any means of actively managing the mortuary trust assets that would eventually be used to pay for these 
acquired preneed funeral contracts. Defendants never disclosed that SCI's failure to take such measures 
had already caused, and would continue to cause, SCI to perform a material number of these prearranged 
funerals unprofitably, and that this ultimately would have a severe adverse impact on SCI's profit 
margins. 

Defendants Conceal The Results Of The Preneed Study 

31. During 1995 alone, SCI purchased 1,263 independent funeral homes and acquired a staggering $656 
million in preneed funeral contracts in connection with these purchases. These purchases resulted in SCI 
increasing its preneed funeral backlog by more than 40% in a single year and created an unprecedented 
need to determine the projected profitability - or lack thereof - of these preneed funeral contracts. 

32. During 1996, SCI undertook what it termed "a review of the prearranged trust investment process 
which included an asset/liability study" (the "Preneed Study"). The results of the Preneed Study 
confirmed that SCI had amassed ownership of a material number of independent funeral homes with 
significant preneed contract inventories throughout the 1990s. The Preneed Study also confirmed for the 
defendants that a significant number of the independent funeral homes acquired by SCI had failed to 
actively manage their mortuary trust assets. As a result, a material number of SCI's funeral services had 
been, and would continue to be, performed at significant losses. 

33. Although defendants publicly disclosed the fact that the Preneed Study had been conducted in the 
Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996 filed with the SEC on March 28, 
1997 (the "SCI 1996 Form 10-K"), they never disclosed the clearly material factual findings of the 
Preneed Study to Class members. In this vein, the SCI 1996 Form 10-K reported only that: 

The Company has recently completed a review of the prearranged trust investment process which 
included an asset/liability study. This has resulted in a new investment program which entails the 
consolidation of multiple trustees, the use of institutional managers with differing investing styles and 
consolidated performance monitoring and tracking. This new program targets a real return in excess 
of the amount necessary to cover future increases in the cost of providing a price guaranteed 
funeral service as well as any selling costs. This is accomplished by allocating the portfolio mix to 
the appropriate investments that more accurately match the anticipated maturity of the policies. 
This has resulted in a new asset allocation policy of approximately 65% equity and 35% fixed 
income which the Company intends to implement in the first half of 1997. [Emphasis added]. 

 
 

Total $1.179 billion $2.425 billion -----
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34. Defendants again referred to the Preneed Study in the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 1997 filed with the SEC on March 30, 1998 (the "SCI 1997 Form 10-K"). 
Defendants again failed to disclose the results of the study and instead stated only that: 

During 1997, the Company completed a review of the prearranged trust investment process which 
included an asset/liability study. This has resulted in a new investment program which entails the 
consolidation of multiple trustees, the use of institutional managers with differing investment 
styles and consolidated performance monitoring and tracking. This new program targets a real 
return in excess of the amount necessary to cover future increases in the cost of providing a price 
guaranteed funeral service as well as any selling costs. This is accomplished by allocating the 
portfolio mix to the appropriate investments that more accurately match the anticipated maturity of the 
policies. The Company is currently reallocating the portfolio to achieve a new asset allocation of 
approximately 65% equity and 35% fixed income. [Emphasis added.] 

 
 
35. While SCI, and the Individual Defendants disclosed the fact that the Preneed Study had been 
conducted and boasted of the "new [preneed] investment program" that was to be implemented, they 
misled investors by failing to disclose the material information they had learned as a result of the 
Preneed Study -- namely that a significant number of independent funeral homes acquired by SCI had 
failed to actively manage their mortuary trust assets and, as a result, a material number of SCI's funeral 
services had been, and would continue to be, performed at significant losses to SCI. 

36. Equally misleading was SCI's disclosure concerning the steps the Company was purportedly taking 
in connection with the implementation of its "new investment program." While the Company's public 
filings proclaim that this program "targets a real rate of return in excess of the amount necessary to 
cover future increases in the cost of providing a price guaranteed funeral service as well as any selling 
costs," the filings did not disclose that this "new investment program" would only be utilized to manage 
preneed assets acquired by SCI in the future. Nor did defendants disclose the absence of any effective 
program to manage the assets associated with the previously acquired preneed funeral service contracts. 
Significantly, the vast majority of the preneed assets that SCI had previously acquired in connection 
with its purchases of independent funeral homes were not, and would not be, invested in accordance 
with the terms of the "new investment program." This clearly material fact, as well as the reasons why 
this was so, were not publicly disclosed. By 1998, SCI's failure to actively manage its mortuary trust 
assets was having an increasingly negative impact on SCI's profit margin as reflected in the following 
graph: 
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37. Rather than disclose the fact that SCI's funeral margins had been, and would continue to be, severely 
negatively impacted as a result of SCI continually having to perform the non-profitable preneed funerals 
in its backlog, defendants misled the Class by instead blaming the margin contraction throughout 1998 
on a number of other factors including "increased costs," "lower funeral service volume," and "higher 
personnel and facility costs." Defendants did so in hopes that they could execute their plan to conceal 
the true cause of the margin squeeze by "burying" the impact of these non-profitable funerals in a "one 
time charge" as discussed in detail below. 

SCI's Need To Secret Its Identity Restricts The Company's 

Ability To Actively Manage The Preneed Assets SCI Acquired 

When It Purchased Thousands of Independent Funeral Homes 
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38. In order to profit from the goodwill and long standing reputations of the family-owned independent 
funeral homes, it was necessary for SCI to refrain from advertising its acquisitions to the public. As an 
article in the August 28, 1995 edition of The Boston Globe reported, large funeral operators, like SCI, 
were so successful in hiding their ownership of the formerly independent family-run funeral homes from 
the public that most consumers failed to notice a change in ownership. The August 28 article stated, 
"chains prefer to keep the owners on, usually with good pay and benefits, to preserve the operation's 
family image. . . Most consumers would never even notice that their local funeral home is now owned 
by an outside firm." 

39. The December 8, 1996 edition of The Boston Globe reported that, although SCI handled roughly one 
in every 10 funeral arrangements in the United States at this time, its expanding presence had generally 
gone unnoticed by the public. "When it buys a funeral home, SCI keeps the same name and usually the 
same management in place. What changes are the backroom operations; vehicle fleets, embalming 
operations, casket purchases and management are all centralized." While a December 11, 1996 Seattle 
Times article entitled, "Big Corporations Shove Aside Mom and Pop" reported: 

SCI and Loewen have been accused of hiding local buyouts hoping to cash in on the good feelings that a 
locally owned funeral business has accumulated through the years. Thus, with the old name still on the 
building, family portraits of the founders still in the lobby and the old manager still in his post, many 
customers won't know they're dealing with a chain. 

 
 
40. Negative press on the aggressive sales practices engaged in by SCI provided further impetus to 
conceal SCI's ownership from the local clientele. For example, the July 6, 1996 edition of The Ledger 
(Lakeland, FL) reported on the abuse of the elderly by an SCI-owned funeral home. According to this 
report, two months after performing the funeral service for Mr. Russell Carriere, a salesman from the 
SCI-operated Glen Abbey Memorial Gardens ("Glen Abbey") repeatedly approached Mr. Carriere's 81-
year-old widow and cajoled her into purchasing her own prepaid funeral for an astonishing $132,439, 
which included a $39,000 casket, and a $52,000 mausoleum. As Mrs. Carriere's niece stated, "They truly 
preyed on a lonely, weak old woman," A civil suit against SCI and Glen Abbey was filed on behalf of 
Mrs. Carriere, charging them with coercing Mrs. Carriere, who had been disabled by a stroke, into 
buying burial services she did not want. 

41. Included among the myriad examples of negative publicity were: 

a. A report in The Arizona Daily Star on January 14, 1996 stated that SCI was singled out by consumers 
as "providing for minimum disposal without regard for the emotional needs of the family." The report 
also quoted a source as saying, "Some of the policies put in place locally by SCI decrease the amount of 
service while maintaining a status quo on cost." 

b. In a story in the February 15, 1996 Las Vegas Review Journal, it was reported that an SCI-owned 
funeral home attempted to bury a prominent local businessman in the mausoleum of an unrelated family 
because, although there was insufficient space for the businessman to have his own mausoleum, the 
funeral home operator wanted the publicity of having the prominent businessman buried on the 
premises. 

c. The Chicago Sun Times reported on April 28, 1996 that two SCI-owned funeral homes employed 
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sales personnel who attempted to persuade bereaved consumers to buy more expensive caskets by 
describing more affordable caskets as "public aid" caskets, instead of providing the consumer a price 
list, as required by law. The reference by the salesperson to "public aid" was designed to create the 
image that only persons with limited or no assets were buried in the public aid caskets and induce the 
purchase of a higher-priced casket. According to the report, "Psychology plays an important role in 
choices made by survivors. Many buyers would feel guilty purchasing a less expensive casket." 

d. An August 6, 1998 report in The Fort Worth Star Telegram stated that the Texas Funeral Service 
Commission would consider a recommendation that SCI be fined $450,000 for allowing unsupervised 
trainees to embalm bodies and failing to advise consumers that the price being charged for embalming 
was higher than the cost to the funeral home. 

42. Because of such criticisms, and SCI's fear of losing clients who learned that the local funeral home 
was no longer locally owned, SCI's ability to actively manage the preneed trust assets it had acquired 
was severely hampered. The Company was hampered because it would have been required to disclose 
its ownership of the funeral homes and control of the preneed trust assets it acquired to future clients in 
order to advise these clients that these assets would now be actively managed. Doing so meant risking 
the loss of millions of dollars worth of potentially profitable preneed funeral business. 

43. Defendants feared that undertaking such a process would lead to countless contract terminations 
when customers realized that an organization tarnished by allegations of the outrageous conduct 
described above was responsible for something as highly sensitive as the customers' future burial 
services. Moreover, an admission by defendants that customers' funds had long been inactively managed 
by the local funeral home would serve to criticize the independent funeral home operators who were 
well regarded by their clients and thus could lead to even more contract cancellations and loss of 
business. 

SCI Attempts To Conceal Its Plunging Profit Margins 

44. The undisclosed results of the Preneed Study confirmed for the defendants that a significant number 
of the independent funeral homes acquired by SCI had failed to actively manage their mortuary trust 
assets and, as a result, a material number of SCI's future funeral services had been, and would continue 
to be, performed at significant losses, severely cutting into SCI profit margins. 

45. Rather than disclosing this clearly material adverse information, defendants embarked upon a 
campaign to conceal the truth about increasing number of unprofitable prearranged funerals SCI was 
performing, the Company's growing backlog of inadequately funded acquired preneed funeral contracts, 
and the increasingly adverse impact these factors were having, and would continue to have, on SCI's 
profit margins and earnings. The first step in this campaign was the public dissemination of materially 
misleading and incomplete information falsely representing that SCI was actively managing its preneed 
mortuary trust assets to ensure sufficient funds to cover or exceed costs for performing contractually 
prearranged funerals. In fact, there was no active management by SCI of the vast majority of the preneed 
trust assets it had amassed through its aggressive acquisitions of funeral homes over the last decade. 

46. As part of its scheme to conceal the true facts about the adverse impact of SCI's multi-billion dollar 
backlog of preneed funeral contracts on SCI profit margins, the defendants misleadingly touted the 
implementation of their so-called "new investment program," described in detail above, without 
disclosing that the "new investment program" did not address the enormous and growing backlog of 
preneed mortuary trust assets acquired in SCI's purchases of funeral private homes, which were laying 
virtually dormant in CD's, unable to grow sufficiently to cover the costs to SCI of providing the 
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associated contractually prearranged funeral services. 

47. Defendants' false and misleading representations that SCI was, in fact, actively managing its backlog 
of acquired preneed trust assets was reinforced when, at the beginning of the Class Period in July, 1998, 
the defendants publicly announced the creation of SCI Financial Services, Inc., a subsidiary which 
would purportedly actively manage SCI's preneed trust assets. 

48. Because defendants could not afford the time and expense involved in building this new subsidiary 
from the ground up, SCI sought quickly to establish this new organization and did so by purchasing two 
operating businesses, each of which had extensive experience in preneed asset management. The first 
acquisition involved SCI's purchase of American Memorial Life Insurance Company ("AML" or 
"American Memorial") and the second acquisition involved the purchase of Equity Corporation 
International ("ECI"). 

49. The purchase of these two organizations provided SCI for the first time with an organizational 
infrastructure for managing the Company's preneed business. 

50. The purchase of ECI is of particular significance because ECI, unlike SCI, already had established, 
and fully disclosed the existence of, a financial management system which ensured that its customers' 
preneed investments, or the funeral insurance coverage obtained, would be sufficient to cover 
adequately the costs of prearranged funeral services. In its Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending 
December 31, 1997 filed with the SEC on or about March 30, 1998 (the "ECI 1997 Form 10-K"), ECI 
reported: 

Insurance policies intended to fund preneed funeral contracts cover the original contract price and 
generally include built-in escalation clauses designed to offset future inflationary cost increases. 
[Emphasis added.] 

 
 
Moreover, the ECI 1997 Form 10-K stated: 

 
 
Earnings on trust funds increase the amount of cash to be received by the Company at the time the 
funeral service is performed and historically have allowed the Company to adequately cover the 
inflationary increase in costs of funeral services. [Emphasis added.] 

51. ECI also recognized the high financial risk posed by the preneed funeral business and took 
protective measures accordingly. In its Form 10-K for fiscal year ending December 31, 1996, filed with 
the SEC on or about March 27, 1997 (the "ECI 1996 Form 10-K"), ECI succinctly recognized the risk of 
overextending preneed funeral sales absent careful financial management of the mortuary trusts: 

Aggressive preneed funeral sales are frequently associated with highly competitive market areas or are 
utilized to rapidly build market share and generally require that funeral contracts be sold at a discount to 
at need sales prices. 

 
 
52. In response to the risks, ECI employed independent financial institutions to manage this risk. Both 
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the ECI 1996 Form 10-K and ECI's Form 10-K for fiscal year ending December 31, 1995, filed with the 
SEC on or about March 25, 1996 (the "ECI 1995 Form 10-K") stated that ECI had: 

. . . established a variety of trusts in connection with its funeral home and cemetery operations as 
required under applicable state law. Such trusts include (i) preneed funeral trusts, (ii) preneed cemetery 
merchandise trusts and (iii) perpetual care trusts. These trusts are typically administered by independent 
financial institutions selected by the Company. The Company also uses independent professional 
managers to advise the Company on investment matters. 

 
 
53. The lack of disclosure regarding the Preneed Study in SCI's public filings is striking when compared 
to the disclosures made by ECI. While ECI disclosed that its insurance policies included "built-in 
escalation clauses" and that earnings on its trust funds "have allowed [it] to adequately cover the 
inflationary increase in costs of funeral services," SCI remained silent on these points. The reason for 
SCI's omissions is clear: the Preneed Study confirmed that SCI's trust funds had not been managed to 
grow at a rate equal to or greater than the increase in the costs of funeral services. 

54. Neither the establishment of SCI Financial Services, Inc. nor the so-called "new investment 
program," however, addressed SCI's multi-million dollar backlog of unprofitable preneed funeral 
contracts whose related mortuary trust assets lay virtually dormant in certificates of deposit, and other 
under-performing investments unable to grow sufficiently to cover the costs of performing funeral 
services in the future. 

55. Defendants had been able to deceive the Class as to the primary -- and continuing -- reason for SCI's 
funeral service gross margin contraction during the first three quarters of 1998 by pointing to declining 
death rates in North America, higher costs and lower volumes of funerals throughout the industry. In 
addition, defendants were able to carefully "manage" SCI's reported 1998 second and third quarter 
earnings by, inter alia, their aggressive acquisition program which provided SCI fresh sources of 
revenue, including, for example, the purchase of American Memorial Life Insurance in the third quarter 
of 1998. However, defendants knew that SCI's deteriorating funeral service profit margins would 
inevitably impact reported earnings, the all important indicia of SCI's financial condition for the 
investing public; and that SCI's fiscal year end would soon bring about a day of reckoning. Accordingly, 
defendants desperately needed to find a new way to conceal the impact that the continued performance 
of these unprofitable funerals was having on the Company's profitability. 

56. According to knowledgeable former employees, by November 1998, the Individual Defendants 
knew that SCI's fourth quarter 1998 earnings would fall at least between $.08 to $.10 below analysts' 
estimates. The Individual Defendants were also aware, by virtue of their receipt of daily, weekly and 
monthly profit/loss reports via the Company's "Falcon" system from each of the Company's domestic 
funeral homes, that this shortfall resulted from SCI's performance of a material number of unprofitable 
preneed funerals, as well as undisclosed changes in SCI's costs. Other senior executives were also aware 
of this impending shortfall and the reasons for it, and openly discussed how to hide the shortfall from 
investors and how they and the Individual Defendants planned to "bury" this shortfall in a one-time 
charge that SCI planned to take in connection with its acquisition of ECI. All were well aware that the 
success of their plan hinged on their ability to close the ECI acquisition during the fourth quarter of 
1998 so that SCI could take this one-time charge in the fourth quarter and close the ECI transaction 
without having to disclose the true reasons for the Company's earnings shortfall. 

57. Defendants' scheme was foiled, however, when the United States Federal Trade Commission (the 

Page 13 of 54

9/20/2004http://www.whafh.com/cases/complaint/svcecmplt.htm



"FTC"), which was required to approve SCI's purchase of ECI, refused to allow SCI to close the ECI 
transaction until SCI had divested itself of certain funeral homes in numerous locations around the 
country. 

58. In particular, the FTC conditioned its approval on SCI's sale of 19 funeral homes and cemetery 
properties located in 14 markets, primarily in the southern, western and mid-western parts of the United 
States, to Carriage Service Inc., another Texas-based funeral home consolidator. Under the consent 
agreement reached with the FTC, SCI would be permitted to acquire ECI, but only after divesting 
specified properties within seven days of the FTC's order. 

59. SCI was unable to divest itself of these properties in time to obtain FTC approval to close the ECI 
transaction in the fourth quarter of 1998. As a result, SCI was unable to "bury" the earnings shortfall, 
which by the end of the fourth quarter had nearly doubled to $.19 to $.20 per share, in an acquisition 
charge as defendants had planned because the Merger did not close until after the end of the fourth 
quarter. 

60. Evidencing the degree of scienter with which defendants acted, defendants nonetheless proceeded to 
close the ECI transaction without ever disclosing to ECI or the Class that SCI would report a drastic 
shortfall in its 1998 fourth quarter earnings. 

61. Defendants did so despite the fact that the Agreement and Plan of Merger By and Among Service 
Corporation International, SCI Delaware Funeral Services, Inc. and Equity Corporation International, 
dated August 6, 1998 (the "Merger Agreement") required SCI to disclose to ECI its poor performance 
during the fourth quarter of 1998 at any time at which it could reasonably be anticipated that such poor 
performance could have an adverse financial impact on SCI. Under the Merger Agreement, ECI would 
have had the right to terminate the Merger Agreement if SCI's poor fourth quarter results had been 
disclosed prior to the closing of the Merger. The fourth quarter results constituted material adverse 
information known to defendants which defendants had a duty to disclose in connection with the 
Merger. 

62. The Registration Statement/Prospectus SCI filed with the SEC incorporated the entire executed 
Merger Agreement. The Registration Statement/Prospectus at page 6 stated: "The Merger Agreement is 
attached hereto as Appendix A and incorporated herein by reference." 

63. Article IV of the Merger Agreement is entitled "Representations and Warranties of Parent and 
Merger Sub." Section 4.7 of Article IV is entitled "Absence of Certain Changes Or Events" and 
provides, with respect to SCI, that "there has not been any event, occurrence, development or state of 
circumstances or facts which has had, or could reasonably be anticipated to have, individually or in the 
aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect." 

64. Section 10.10 of the Merger Agreement, entitled "Certain Definitions," defines Material Adverse 
Effect as: 

any event, occurrence, fact, condition, change, development or effect that is or could reasonably be 
anticipated to be materially adverse to the business, assets (including intangible assets), liabilities, 
financial condition, results of operations, properties (including intangible properties) or business 
prospects of the Company and all of its Subsidiaries or the Parent and all of its Subsidiaries, as 
applicable, taken as a whole.... 
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65. Section 8.2 of the Merger Agreement, entitled "Conditions To Obligation Of [ECI] To Effect The 
Merger," establishes as a condition for consummating the Merger that the representations and warranties 
made by SCI in the Merger Agreement shall continue to be true up to and including the day on which 
SCI's shares are exchanged for ECI's shares. Section 8.2(a) provides: 

the representations and warranties of [SCI] and Merger Sub contained in this Agreement shall be true 
and correct in all material respects (or in all respects in the case of any representation or warranty 
containing any materiality qualification) on and as of the date made and on and as of the Closing Date as 
if made at and as of such date, and the Company shall have received a certificate executed on behalf of 
Parent by the President or a Vice President of Parent and on behalf of Merger Sub by the President and 
Chief Executive Officer or a Vice President of Merger Sub to that effect. 

 
 
66. Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, ECI had the right to terminate the Merger Agreement at 
any time prior to January 19, 1999 if a Material Adverse Event existed at SCI. Article IX of the Merger 
Agreement, entitled "Termination, Amendment And Waiver," provides: 

[t]his Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Effective Time, whether before or after 
approval by the stockholders of the Company . . . if the representations and warranties of Parent and 
Merger Sub shall fail to be true and correct in all material respects (or in all respects in the case of any 
representation or warranty containing any materiality qualification) on and as of the date made or, 
except in the case of any such representations and warranties made as of a specified date, on and as of 
any subsequent date as if made at and as of subsequent date and such failure shall not have been cured in 
all material respects (or in all respects in the case of any representation or warranty containing any 
materiality qualification) within 30 days after written notice of such failure is given to [SCI] by [ECI]. 

 
 
67. Defendants were well aware that disclosure of the adverse financial conditions at SCI related to its 
unprofitable preneed business would lead to the termination of the Merger by ECI or to a renegotiation 
of the transaction so that SCI would potentially have to double the number of shares issued in order to 
acquire ECI. This was a risk the defendants were not willing to take. 

68. Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, SCI would acquire all of ECI's common stock through a 
stock-for-stock transaction that would result in ECI shareholders receiving $27 per share in SCI 
common stock. The number of shares of SCI stock to be issued to ECI shareholders was to be 
determined based on the average trading price of SCI common stock for the ten day trading period 
ending on the third day prior to the closing of the Merger, provided that such price was not less than $34 
and not more than $41.50 per share. The Merger Agreement provided that if the average trading price of 
SCI's common stock was less than $34 per share, then 0.79412 shares of SCI common stock would be 
exchanged for each share of ECI common stock. The Merger Agreement provided that if the average 
trading price of SCI's common stock was greater than $41.50 per share, then 0.65050 shares of SCI 
common stock would be exchanged for each share of ECI stock declined, provided, however, that if 
SCI's common stock was trading at a price above or below the price "collar" identified in the Merger 
Agreement, SCI shares would be exchanged for the outstanding ECI shares at fixed floor and ceiling 
ratios. 

69. The original Merger Agreement provided that if the average trading price for a share of SCI common 

Page 15 of 54

9/20/2004http://www.whafh.com/cases/complaint/svcecmplt.htm



stock fell below $34, then SCI would exchange 0.79412 SCI shares for each ECI share. In exchange for 
raising the asset divestiture limit, SCI required an amendment to the Merger Agreement that provided 
that if the average trading price for a share of SCI stock prior to the closing was below $38 per share, 
then SCI would exchange 0.71053 SCI shares for each ECI share. This reduced the maximum number of 
SCI shares payable to ECI shareholders from 17,298,472 to 15,477,614. 

70. Defendants' audacity, however, is perhaps best highlighted by the fact that, at some point after the 
FTC began its review of the Merger, representatives from SCI started to discuss raising the Merger 
Agreement's limit on assets that SCI would be required to divest as a condition for the Merger. SCI used 
this opportunity to negotiate for a lower purchase price to be paid to ECI in exchange for agreeing to 
divest assets having aggregate 1997 revenue of up to $20 million, by demanding that ECI agree to lower 
the maximum number of SCI shares to be exchanged for ECI's outstanding shares. 

71. On December 14, 1998, SCI and ECI amended the Merger Agreement to raise the asset divestiture 
revenue limit to $20 million and to reduce the maximum SCI shares exchangeable for ECI shares. When 
the Merger closed on January 19, 1999, the average trading price of a share of SCI was below $38, 
triggering the re-negotiated maximum exchange ratio. Remarkably, defendants renegotiated the 
consideration to be received by ECI shareholders with knowledge of SCI's impending earnings shortfall 
and never disclosed it, despite having warranted that there had been no such adverse development at the 
Company. Indeed, December 14 was only 12 business days prior to the end of SCI's fourth quarter for 
1998, by which time the Individual Defendants were well aware that SCI's preneed business would lead 
to a material earnings shortfall for the fourth quarter. They were made aware, in part, by the SCI 
proprietary computer systems known as the "Falcon" system, which provided profit and loss information 
for every domestic funeral home owned by SCI directly to SCI corporate headquarters electronically on 
a next-day basis. However, this information was never disclosed to ECI shareholders and the Class until 
after the Merger was completed. 

Defendants' Materially False and Misleading Statements 

and Material Omissions During The Class Period 

72. Throughout the Class Period, defendants acted negligently, recklessly or intentionally by omitting to 
disclose material information concerning SCI and by issuing a series of materially false and misleading 
statements concerning the Company's financial condition and preneed funeral business. Defendants' 
misconduct caused the price of the Company's securities to become and remain artificially inflated 
(artificially depressed in the case of put options) throughout the Class Period, and ultimately resulted in 
millions of dollars in damages being incurred by Class members. Defendants' materially false and 
misleading statements, and the reasons why such statements were materially false and misleading, are 
set forth below. 

73. On July 17, 1998, SCI issued a materially false and misleading press release that bore the headline, 
Service Corporation International Buys Pre-need Insurance Division of American Annuity Group and 
Forms New Financial Services Subsidiary. Defendant Champagne was listed as the "contact" person for 
the press release. The release stated in relevant part: 

Service Corporation International (NYSE: SRV) ("SCI"), the world's largest funeral and cemetery 
company, announced today that it will acquire the pre-need funeral services division of American 
Annuity Group Inc. (NYSE: AAG) ("AAG") of Cincinnati, Ohio for $164 million cash. 
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* * * 

 
 
SCI has formed a new financial services subsidiary, SCI Financial Services, Inc., to facilitate the 
expansion of SCI's pre-need businesses and financial activities worldwide. The new company's 
operations will include prearranged funeral marketing, funeral and cemetery trust administration, 
investment management, life insurance operations and the lending activities of Provident Services, Inc., 
an existing SCI subsidiary which provides capital financing for independent funeral home and cemetery 
operations. 

 
 
SCI Financial Services will coordinate the investment of over $3 billion of pre-need funeral trust 
and insurance assets and over $1 billion in cemetery trust assets, direct the marketing for over 
$700 million in annual face amounts of prearranged funeral sales, administer over one million 
pre-need funeral trust and insurance contracts and oversee a finance operation with a loan 
portfolio in excess of $250 million. [Emphasis added.] 

 
 
74. The foregoing statements were intended to, and did, misrepresent to the investing public the false 
and misleading information that the formation of SCI Financial Services, Inc. would result in the active 
and effective investment of SCI's existing and future pre-need funeral trust assets to ensure SCI's 
revenues and earnings from its pre-need funeral business, which the statements also falsely implied was 
financially healthy and profitable. The Company and the Individual Defendants failed, however, to 
disclose the following facts, known to or recklessly disregarded by the defendants when the press release 
was issued, that rendered the statements in the press release materially false and misleading when made: 

(a) the Individual Defendants knew from the Preneed Study that a material number of the independent 
funeral homes acquired by SCI throughout the 1990s had failed to actively manage their mortuary trust 
assets to ensure that such assets would equal or exceed the cost of providing the prearranged guaranteed 
price funerals SCI was contractually obligated to provide, and, as a result, a material number of SCI's 
funeral services had been, and would continue to be, performed at significant losses; 

(b) SCI's funeral profit margins were being, and were going to continue to be severely eroded as a result 
of having to perform prearranged funeral services at costs not covered by the mortuary trust assets 
dedicated to those funeral services as a result of the failure by SCI to establish any means to actively or 
effectively invest its existing mortuary trust assets, including those from funeral homes acquired by SCI, 
to improve the rates of return on or growth of those assets, and, as a result, SCI had performed, and 
would continue to perform, a material number of prearranged funeral services at significant losses; 

(c) far from establishing SCI Financial Services, Inc. "to facilitate the expansion of SCI's pre-need 
business and financial activities worldwide," as defendants claimed, the creation of this subsidiary 
marked the first time in SCI's history that the Company had implemented any concrete steps to actively 
manage at least a portion of its preneed trust assets. Prior to the creation of this subsidiary, and 
notwithstanding defendants' earlier representations about a "new investment program," no individual or 
organization at SCI had been responsible for actively managing those assets; 
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(d) SCI Financial Services, Inc. would not be involved in managing of the vast majority SCI's existing 
multi-billion dollar backlog of preneed mortuary trust assets acquired in SCI's funeral home 
acquisitions, which would continue to be invested in dormant, underperforming interest bearing 
vehicles, such as bank CD's; 

(e) American Memorial was being acquired to provide SCI with a vehicle to begin to actively manage 
preneed assets going forward, in order to blunt the ongoing drastic adverse impact that the under-
performance of SCI's preexisting mortuary trust assets was having on SCI's profitability, but 

(f) SCI's "new investment program," which was purportedly implemented in 1997 in order to "target[] a 
real return in excess of the amount necessary to cover future increases in the cost of providing a price 
guaranteed funeral service as well as any selling costs," was not actively managing the vast majority of 
the preneed trust assets SCI had acquired by purchasing independent funeral homes. Indeed, SCI was 
unable to actively manage these preneed trust assets because doing so would have required SCI to step 
out of the shadows and identify itself as the true owner of thousands of funeral homes across the country 
and internationally and would cause existing and future customers to seek out other locally-owned 
funeral homes when they learned that what they believed was a locally-owned funeral home was 
actually owned by SCI, the world's largest funeral home conglomerate. 

75. On July 18, 1998, the Houston Chronicle published an article entitled, SCI To Get Into Funeral 
Insurance; Houston Giant To Buy 'Final Expense' Business. This article discussed SCI's acquisition of 
American Memorial and quoted defendant Waltrip as stating: 

"SCI is a world leader in the provision of high-quality funeral and cemetery services," said R.L. Waltrip, 
SCI chairman and chief executive officer. "This acquisition enables SCI to directly respond to the 
increased demand for alternative methods for paying for these services." 

 
 

* * * 

 
 
"SCI's longstanding relationship with American Memorial makes them the logical choice to drive our 
expansion into the preneed insurance business," Waltrip said. The way SCI sees it, the acquisition 
is a way for it to expand its profit base. Not only will it make money arranging funerals, but it will 
also collect the insurance premiums people pay for final-expense insurance, Heiligbrodt said. "Our goal 
is to pick up two profits," he said. "The money we're spending is buying new profits and generating new 
future profits." 

 
 
"We're adding another dimension to make sure we're picking up all the value we can for our 
shareholders," Heiligbrodt said. 

 
 
SCI sells about $700 million of prearranged funerals a year worldwide, he said. [Emphasis added]. 
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76. The foregoing statements were materially false and misleading at the time they were made and were 
intended to, and did, convey to the investing public the false impression that SCI was in the midst of a 
profitable "expansion into the pre-need insurance business," and that SCI's acquisition of American 
Memorial was undertaken to build on and increase the profitability of its existing preneed "profit base." 
In fact, as defendant Waltrip knew, or recklessly disregarded, SCI's profitability was being severely 
undercut by its existing backlog of preneed funeral contracts, and the acquisition of American Memorial 
and planned expansion into preneed insurance was not "a way to expand [SCI's] profit base," nor an 
effort to "make sure we're picking up all the value we can for our shareholders." Instead, the acquisition 
of American Memorial was an attempt to obtain new sources of revenue to mask the growing reductions 
in SCI's overall profit margins caused by having to provide unprofitable prearranged funerals pursuant 
to SCI's existing and acquired preneed contracts, and to ensure that going forward SCI would not be 
saddled with even more dormant and underperforming mortuary trust assets that could not cover the 
costs of prearranged funerals. 

77. The foregoing statements by defendant Waltrip were also false and misleading because of the failure 
to disclose the facts set forth in ¶74(a)-(f) above, which were necessary to make the statements Waltrip 
made about SCI's acquisition of American Memorial and expansion into the preneed insurance business 
not false and misleading. 

78. On July 23, 1998, SCI issued a materially false and misleading press release that bore the headline, 
Service Corporation International Reports Net Income up 15% and EPS up 13% for Second Quarter. 
Defendant Champagne was listed as the "contact" person on the press release. The release stated in 
relevant part: 

Service Corporation International (NYSE: SRV) ("SCI"), the world's largest funeral and cemetery 
company, today reported record second quarter revenues and earnings. For the three months ended June 
30, 1998, the company reported revenues of $671.9 million, net income of $90.9 million and diluted 
earnings per share of $.35 ($.36 basic). This represents a 11.8 percent increase in revenues, a 15.4 
percent increase in net income and a 12.9 percent increase in diluted earnings per share (9.1 percent 
basic) when compared to the second quarter of 1997. 

 
 
"Strong North American cemetery results contributed impressively to our quarterly earnings growth, 
more than offsetting the effect on the funeral segment of lower than expected North American 
mortality rates. Funeral volumes improved in June after experiencing unusually weak volumes in 
April and May," said R.L. Waltrip, SCI's Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. 

 
 

* * * 

 
 
 
 
Commenting on the results, L. William Heiligbrodt, SCI's President and Chief Operating Officer said, 
"Fluctuations in mortality rates present operational challenges over certain time periods; however, 
the fundamentals of the funeral service industry remain strong. Our properties include many of the 
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premier funeral businesses in major metropolitan markets around the world, providing excellent 
opportunities for growth. Our newly formed financial services group and its acquisition of 
American Memorial Life Insurance Company will increase our prearranged funeral marketing 
efforts, providing for future funeral volume to maintain our consistent performance." 

 
 

* * * 

 
 
During the second quarter of 1998, sales of prearranged funeral contracts were approximately $138.9 
million, which expanded the backlog of prearranged funeral contracts to be serviced in future 
periods to approximately $3.3 billion. [Emphasis added.] 

 
 
79. The foregoing statements were materially false and misleading at the time they were made because, 
as defendants SCI, Waltrip, Heiligbrodt and Champagne knew, or recklessly disregarded, and failed to 
disclose: 

(a) the financial results of SCI's funeral segment was being adversely effected by the increasing number 
of unprofitable prearranged funeral services SCI was performing, not by "lower . . . mortality rates" or 
"weak volumes;" 

(b) the principal operational "challenge" facing SCI was not "[f]luctuations in mortality rates," but the 
multi-million dollar backlog of passive underperforming preneed mortuary trust assets; 

(c) SCI's "newly formed financial services group [SCI Financial Services, Inc.]" was not addressing the 
known and growing deterioration in SCI's funeral services profit margins caused by its backlog of 
preneed mortuary trust assets invested in passive, low return bank CDs and similar investment vehicles; 
and 

(d) SCI Financial Services, Inc. and the acquisition of American Memorial were part of SCI's attempt to 
begin to actively manage the investment of future preneed mortuary assets, not the "expanded . . . 
backlog" of existing preneed funeral contracts, nor was SCI in any manner seeking to "maintain [the] 
consistent performance" of its multi-billion dollar backlog of preneed funeral contracts, but, to the 
contrary, was actively concealing the increasingly unprofitable performance of that segment of its 
business. 

80. On August 6, 1998, SCI issued a materially false and misleading press release that bore the headline, 
Service Corporation International Announces Definitive Agreement for Merger With Equity 
Corporation International. Defendant Champagne was listed as a "contact" person on the press release. 
The release stated in relevant part: 

Service Corporation International (NYSE: SRV)("SCI"), the world's largest funeral and cemetery 
company, announced today that it has reached a definitive agreement with Equity Corporation 
International (NYSE: EQU)("ECI") to form a business combination between the two companies. 
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ECI, the nation's fourth largest publicly traded death care company, based in Lufkin, Texas, currently 
owns and operates 326 funeral homes and 81 cemeteries in 35 states and one Canadian province. The 
combination would occur through a stock-for-stock transaction that would result in ECI shareholders 
receiving $27 per share in SCI stock. The actual number of shares of SCI stock to be issued to the ECI 
shareholders will be determined based on the average SCI stock price for the ten (10) consecutive 
trading days ending on the third trading day prior to the closing of the merger. The average price of SCI 
stock used in computing the exchange will not be less than $34.00 and no more than $41.50 per share. 

 
 

* * * 

 
 
In explaining the transaction, Robert L. Waltrip, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of 
SCI said, "The merger will create a combined North American operation with unparalleled resources 
servicing both the metropolitan and rural markets throughout the country. The addition of ECI and its 
exceptional revenue growth rate should further enhance SCI's leading domestic market position." 

 
 

* * * 

 
 
L. William Heiligbrodt, President and Chief Operating Officer of SCI noted, "The addition of ECI's 
properties opens SCI and its newly formed financial services division to the North American rural 
market, providing an expanded network and infrastructure through which we can better service both our 
prearranged and at-need families. Additional synergies should result from consolidating our operations 
and through further leveraging our cost structure." 

 
 

* * * 

 
 
81. The foregoing statements were materially false and misleading at the time they were made because 
defendants SCI, Waltrip and Heiligbrodt knew, or were reckless in not knowing, and failed to disclose 
that: 

(a) the acquisition of ECI was part of SCI's attempt to establish, belatedly, a means to actively manage 
its preneed mortuary trust assets in order to ensure that its own future sales of preneed funeral contracts 
would not result in the kind of unprofitable funeral services increasingly generated by a substantial 
portion of SCI's existing multi-billion dollar preneed backlog; and 

(b) SCI's "leading domestic market position" was largely the result of SCI's acquisition of private funeral 
homes, and of their poorly invested preneed mortuary trust assets, which, at the time the statements were 
made, were severely cutting into SCI's profit margins. 
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82. On August 7, 1998, the Houston Chronicle published an article entitled, SCI Will Buy Rural-Market 
Equity Corp.; $588 Million Deal a Reunion For The Two Firms. This article discussed SCI's acquisition 
of ECI, quoted defendants Waltrip and Heiligbrodt, and stated in relevant part: 

Service Corporation International, the world's largest funeral company and one of the largest firms in 
Houston, is buying a Lufkin-based company [ECI] specializing in buying and operating funeral homes 
in rural areas and small cities. 

  

* * * 

 
 
"The merger will create a combined North American operation with unparalleled resources servicing 
both the metropolitan and rural markets throughout the country," Service Corp. Chairman Robert L. 
Waltrip said in a written statement. "The addition of ECI and its exceptional revenue growth rate should 
further enhance SCI's leading domestic market position." 

 
 

* * * 

 
 
"They have a very good management team. They operate their business very well," Heiligbrodt said. 
"They see things like we do. Their operational systems are very similar to ours. We know each 
other very well. It is one of the safest acquisitions a company like SCI could do." [Emphasis added.] 

 
 
83. The foregoing statements were materially false and misleading at the time they were made because 
defendants SCI, Waltrip and Heiligbrodt knew, or were reckless in not knowing, and failed to disclose: 

(a) the facts set forth in ¶ 81(a) and (b), above; and 

(b) that ECI's "operational systems" were fundamentally different from SCI's systems in that ECI, unlike 
SCI, had an established program to actively manage its preneed mortuary assets to ensure that the funds 
available from those assets would cover or exceed the cost of providing guaranteed price preneed 
funeral services in the future. 

84. On August 11, 1998, a death care industry journal entitled Death Care Business Advisor published 
an article entitled SCI Acquires American Annuity Group, Moves Into Preneed Services. This article, 
which discussed SCI's acquisition of American Memorial, contained extensive quotes from defendant 
Champagne that echoed many of the false and misleading representations about SCI's business and plans 
which began with the July 17, 1998 announcement of SCI's acquisition of American Memorial. 
Defendant Champagne was quoted as commenting on the American Memorial acquisition as follows: 

"It's a new focus on our part," confirmed SCI Senior VP/CFO George Champagne. He called the 
acquisition a "logical fit," citing SCI's history in the prearranged funeral business. "We've long been 
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the leaders in the prearranged funeral business," he claimed. 

 
 
SCI has been seeking ways to increase its market share, according to Champagne. "The most 
compelling way to do that is to increase the level of the prearranged funeral business," he offered. 
"The acquisition of American Memorial gives us the ability to fund our prearranged business." 

 
 

* * * 

 
 
"You're effectively building your backlog of funding for prearranged funerals," which has the 
effect of expanding or maintaining SCI's prearranged funeral business, explained Champagne. 
"That is a very important aspect to a company like SCI. There is a lot of competition for 
prearranged funeral business." Thus the acquisition of AAG's funeral services division, he said, will 
allow SCI to better compete for and serve customers. [Emphasis added.] 

 
 
85. The foregoing statements made by Champagne were materially false and misleading because they 
failed to disclose facts that Champagne knew or recklessly disregarded, and that were necessary to make 
the statements accurate and truthful when made, including that: 

(a) the acquisition of American Memorial was part of defendants' scheme to 

conceal the sharply adverse effects on SCI's profit margins caused by the multi-million dollar backlog of 
inadequately funded and/or dormant and underperforming mortuary trust assets; 

(b) SCI's position as a "leader in the prearranged funeral business" was gained 

through the acquisition of small, private funeral homes that brought with them dormant and 
underperforming mortuary trust assets that were, and continued to be, inadequate to cover the costs of 
the related guaranteed price prearranged funerals SCI was obligated to provide; 

(c) SCI's acquisition of American Memorial did not, and would not give it 

"the ability to fund [its] prearranged business" because that business included large numbers of preneed 
funeral contracts funded by inadequate and/or dormant and underperforming mortuary trust assets; and 

(d) SCI's "competition for prearranged funeral business," such as ECI, had 

taken steps to actively manage their mortuary trust assets and were thus not subject to the drastic 
decreases in profit margins plaguing SCI. 

86. In that August 11, 1998 article, Champagne was also quoted as stating: 

Lastly, Champagne reminded that in the early 1980s SCI was in the insurance business. "We owned 
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Family Services Life Insurance Company. . . . At the time," he continued, "SCI was a much smaller 
company. We did not have the infrastructure of funeral homes across the country." 

 
 
Then, in 1989, SCI made "a strategic decision to exit that portion of the business," said Champagne. 
"We couldn't support the insurance organization that was predominantly selling insurance for 
independent funeral homes." Today, though, as the dominant funeral services provider in the 
industry, "We've got the infrastructure across the country," Champagne said. 

 
 

* * * 

 
 
Citing the company's record [1998] second-quarter earnings, with net income reportedly up 15 percent 
and earnings per share up 13 percent, Champagne said SCI is pleased with the results "in the face of 
what has come to be weak funeral volumes caused by a lower death rate scenario in North 
America in the second quarter." But the company doesn't expect that trend to continue. "We 
don't think it's a continuing phenomenon," Champagne said. "That's one thing about the funeral 
business. It's predictable, consistent and sustainable over a long period of time. In any three-
month period you're going to have fluctuations. The challenge is to manage through those 
fluctuations." 

* * * 

 
 
"Our acquisition activity continues at a very strong pace right now," said Champagne. "We're on 
target to acquire between 280 million and 300 million of annualized revenues, of which probably 50 
percent to 60 percent of that will be from international sources." [Emphasis added.] 

 
 
87. These additional statements were also materially false and misleading at the time they were made 
because defendant Champagne, knew, or was reckless in not knowing, and failed to disclose that: 

(a) SCI's "infrastructure of funeral homes around the country" included a material number of formerly 
privately owned funeral homes that brought with them inadequately funded and/or dormant and 
underperforming mortuary trust assets; 

(b) SCI's position as the "dominant funeral services provider" was obtained through the acquisition of a 
material number of formerly private funeral homes with inadequately funded and/or dormant and 
underperforming mortuary trust assets; 

(c) SCI's weakness in the second quarter was the result of the unprofitability of prearranged guaranteed 
price funeral services performed pursuant to inadequately funded and/or dormant and underperforming 
mortuary trust assets, and not "weak volumes caused by a lower death rate scenario"; and 

Page 24 of 54

9/20/2004http://www.whafh.com/cases/complaint/svcecmplt.htm



(d) SCI's acquisition activities were continuing "at a very strong pace" because of the urgent need to 
"purchase" revenue to disguise the fundamental and growing problems caused by the Company's 
enormous backlog of inadequately funded and/or dormant and underperforming mortuary trust assets. 

88. On August 14, 1998, SCI filed its Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998 with the SEC (the 
"1998 Q2 Form 10-Q"). The 1998 Q2 Form 10-Q was also incorporated by reference into the 
Registration Statement/Prospectus for SCI's acquisition of ECI, filed on November 19, 1998. The 1998 
Q2 Form 10-Q was signed by defendant Champagne and contained the following materially false and 
misleading statements in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements: 

Prearranged Funeral Activities 

The Company sells price guaranteed prearranged funeral contracts through various programs providing 
for future funeral services at prices prevailing when the agreements are signed. Payments under 
these contracts are generally placed in trust accounts (pursuant to applicable law) or are used to pay 
premiums on life insurance policies [issued by third party insurers] . . . Trust earnings and increasing 
insurance benefits are accrued and deferred until the service is performed, at which time these 
funds are also recognized in funeral revenues and are intended to cover future increases in the 
cost of providing a price guaranteed funeral service. . . . [Emphasis added.] 

 
 
1998 Q2 Form 10-Q at 7-8. 

 
 
89. The foregoing statements were materially false and misleading when made because SCI and the 
Individual Defendants knew, or were reckless or negligent in not knowing, and failed to disclose that: 

(a) SCI's backlog of prearranged funeral contracts included a material number of contracts that were not 
sold "at prices prevailing when the agreements [were] signed," but at discounts to those prices; and 

(b) The funds from many of SCI's mortuary trusts did not "cover" or exceed the cost of their related 
price guaranteed funeral services, and, as a result, SCI was and would continue to experience drastically 
deteriorating profit margins in its funeral service business. 

90. The 1998 Q2 Form 10-Q also stated in the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition ("MD&A") section, that: 

Prearranged Funeral Services 

 
 
The Company has a marketing program to sell prearranged funeral contracts and the funds collected are 
generally held in trust or are used to purchase life insurance or annuity contracts. The principal amount 
of each such prearranged funeral contract will be received in cash by a Company funeral service location 
at the time the funeral is performed. Earnings on trust funds and increasing benefits under 
insurance and annuity funded contracts also increase the amount of cash to be received upon 
performance of the funeral and are intended to cover future increases in the cost of providing a 
price guaranteed funeral service as well as any selling costs. During 1997, the Company completed a 
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review of the prearranged trust investment process which included an asset/liability study. This 
has resulted in a new investment program which entails the consolidation of multiple trustees, the 
use of institutional managers with differing investment styles and consolidated performance 
monitoring and tracking. This new program targets a real return in excess of the amount 
necessary to cover future increases in the cost of providing a price guaranteed funeral service as 
well as any selling costs. . . . [Emphasis added.] 

 
 
1998 Q2 Form 10-Q at 19-20. 

 
 
91. The foregoing statements were materially false and misleading at the time they were made because 
SCI and the Individual Defendants knew, or were reckless or negligent in not knowing, and failed to 
disclose that: 

(a) SCI's backlog of prearranged funeral contracts included a material number of contracts that were 
backed by mortuary trusts that were inadequately funded and/or had assets that were not actively 
invested to ensure growth adequate to cover "the cost of providing a price guaranteed funeral service"; 

(b) The Preneed Study showed that a material number of funeral homes acquired by SCI failed to 
actively manage their mortuary trust assets, and, as a result, a material number of SCI's funeral services 
had been, and would continue to be, performed at significant losses, resulting in an increasingly sharp 
erosion in SCI's profit margins for funeral services; and 

(c) SCI's "new investment program" was not actively managing the vast majority of the preneed trust 
assets SCI had acquired by purchasing independent private funeral homes, and was not obtaining "a real 
return in excess of the amount necessary to cover" the costs to SCI of providing a material number of 
prearranged guaranteed price funeral services. 

92. On September 30, 1998, SCI issued a materially false and misleading press release that bore the 
headline, Service Corporation International Completes Strategic Acquisition of Pre-need Insurance 
Division of American Annuity Group. The release stated in relevant part: 

Service Corporation International (NYSE: SRV), the world's largest funeral and cemetery company, 
announced today that it has completed its previously announced acquisition of the pre-need funeral 
services division of American Annuity Group Inc. (NYSE: AAG) of Cincinnati, Ohio for $164 million 
cash. 

 
 

* * * 

 
 
American Memorial will be part of a new financial services subsidiary, SCI Financial Services, 
Inc., formed to facilitate the expansion of SCI's pre-need businesses and financial activities 
worldwide. The new company's operations include prearranged funeral marketing, funeral and cemetery 
trust administration, investment management, life insurance operations and the lending activities of 
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Provident Services, Inc., an existing SCI subsidiary which provides capital financing for independent 
funeral home and cemetery operations. [Emphasis added.] 

 
 
93. The foregoing statements were materially false and misleading at the time they were made because 
SCI and the Individual Defendants knew, or were reckless in not knowing, and failed to disclose that: 

(a) the acquisition of American Memorial was an attempt by SCI to conceal its deteriorating funeral 
service profit margins resulting from its backlog of inadequately funded and/or dormant and 
underperforming preneed mortuary trust assets; and 

(b) SCI Financial Services, Inc. and SCI's acquisition of American Memorial was part of SCI's attempt 
to begin to actively manage the investments of future preneed mortuary assets, and did not and would 
not address the continually more acute and drastic deterioration in profit margins caused by the existing 
backlog of inadequately funded and/or dormant and underperforming assets SCI acquired pursuant to its 
purchases of privately owned funeral homes. 

94. On October 22, 1998, SCI issued a materially false and misleading press release that bore the 
headline, Service Corporation International Reports 14.4% Increase in Net Income and 14.3% Increase 
in EPS for Third Quarter 1998. Defendant Champagne was listed as a "contact" person for the press 
release. The release stated in relevant part: 

Strategic Highlights 

 
 
-- Completed the acquisition of American Memorial Life Insurance Company (AML) for $164 million. 

 
 
-- Announced the business combination with Equity Corporation International for $830 million, 
including assumed indebtedness. 

 
 
-- Formed a new financial services subsidiary, SCI Financial Services, Inc. to facilitate expansion of 
preneed businesses and financial activities worldwide. 

 
 
Commenting on the results, Robert Waltrip, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, said: 

 
 
"I am pleased to report another quarter of increased profitability for SCI despite the widely 
publicized reduced number of deaths reported by our industry. While SCI was not insulated from 
this experience, the strategic acquisitions and initiatives announced this summer will add value to 
SCI today and long-term." 
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SCI's President and Chief Operating Officer, L. William Heiligbrodt, added: 

 
 
"Since 1990, SCI's North American market share has nearly doubled to approximately 11% 
today, mainly through acquisitions, new construction and prearranged funerals. SCI's market 
share is expected to increase as we accelerate the sales of prearranged funerals. We plan to double 
the annual sales of prearranged funerals within five years. . . ." 

 
 
Acquisition Activity 

 
 
Effective July 1, 1998, SCI acquired AML, the pre-need funeral services division of American Annuity 
Group Inc., for $164 million cash. AML offers a variety of pre-need and final expense life insurance and 
annuity products to finance prearranged funerals. To facilitate the expansion of SCI's pre-need 
businesses and financial activities worldwide, SCI formed a new financial services subsidiary, SCI 
Financial Services, Inc. 

 
 
In August, SCI reached an agreement with Equity Corporation International (ECI) to enter into a 
business combination between the two companies. The combined company will have operations 
throughout metropolitan and rural North America and will consist of approximately 3,600 funeral 
homes, 500 cemeteries and 200 crematoria worldwide, with annualized revenues approaching $3 billion. 
[Emphasis added.] 

 
 
95. The foregoing statements made by SCI and the Individual Defendants were materially false and 
misleading at the time they were made because these defendants knew, or were reckless in not knowing, 
and failed to disclose that: 

(a) the profitability of SCI's funeral services business was and continued to deteriorate materially as a 
result of the increasing number of unprofitable funeral services being performed pursuant to preneed 
funeral service contracts backed by inadequately funded and/or dormant and underperforming preneed 
mortuary trusts; 

(b) SCI's nearly doubling of its market share since 1990 "mainly through acquisitions, new construction 
and prearranged funerals" resulted in the accumulation of an enormous backlog of preneed contracts 
backed by inadequately funded and/or dormant and underperforming mortuary trust assets, resulting in 
drastically decreasing profits margins; 

(c) far from establishing SCI Financial Services, Inc. "to facilitate the expansion of SCI's pre-need 
business and financial activities worldwide," as defendants claimed, the creation of this subsidiary 
marked the first time in SCI's history that the Company had implemented any concrete steps to manage 

Page 28 of 54

9/20/2004http://www.whafh.com/cases/complaint/svcecmplt.htm



actively at least a portion of its preneed trust assets. Prior to the creation of this subsidiary, and 
notwithstanding defendants' earlier representations about a "new investment program," no individual or 
organization at SCI had been responsible for actively managing those assets; 

(d) SCI's new investment management operations through the establishment of SCI Financial Services, 
Inc. would not be involved in managing of the vast majority of SCI's existing multi-billion dollar 
backlog of preneed mortuary trust assets acquired in SCI's funeral home acquisitions, which would 
continue to be invested in underperforming interest bearing vehicles, such as bank CDs; and 

(e) the acquisition of ECI was part of SCI's attempt to establish, belatedly, a means to actively manage 
its preneed mortuary trust assets in order to ensure that its future sales of preneed funeral contracts 
would not result in the kind of unprofitable funeral services increasingly generated by a substantial 
portion of SCI's existing multi-billion dollar preneed backlog. 

96. On November 10, 1998, Death Care Business Advisor published an article entitled SCI Reports 14 
Percent Gains in Income, Share Earnings. This article discussed SCI's third quarter 1998 financial 
results, quoted defendants Waltrip and Champagne, and stated in relevant part: 

A slowdown in the number of deaths in North America did not stop Service Corporation International 
from racking up double-digit gains in net income and earnings per share for the third quarter of 1998 
(see detailed results on p 4). The company used its strategy of acquisitions combined with a 
conscious effort to cut costs to, as SCI chairman Robert Waltrip said, "add value to SCI today and 
long term." 

  

Commenting on future plans, SCI, which holds an 11 percent market share in the funeral industry, has 
aggressive plans to grow its business operations. 

 
 

* * * 

 
 
SCI Takes on More Preneed 

 
 
Responding to concerns that the death rate was falling, SCI touted the moves it has made in the 
preneed funeral market, including the recent acquisition of American Memorial Life, the preneed 
insurance division of American Annuity Group, Inc. on July 1. The company paid 164 million. To 
facilitate SCI's growth in this area, the company formed a new subsidiary, SCI Financial Services 
Inc. to handle preneed and other company financial activities. 

 
 
In that area, the company showed booming growth, with revenues growing from 21.5 million in 
the third quarter of 1997 to 65.8 million for the third quarter of 1998, incorporating the 
acquisition of AML into its financial results. 
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"In 1997, domestically, just over 25 percent of the atneed services we provided were the 
culmination of a pre-arranged contract. That means one-quarter of our funerals came from the 
backlog, up two percentage points from 1996," said SCI chief financial officer George 
Champagne. "For the first nine months of 1998, that percentage is just below 27 percent. Preneed 
is providing an increasing amount of our atneed services, and there is potential to expand market 
share." 

 
 

* * * 

 
 
Expenses Drop in Quarter 

 
 
Despite the growth the company achieved through acquisition, the flat death rate domestically 
caused it to become aggressive in the area of expense reduction. For the third quarter of 1998, 
general and administrative expenses were 15.4 million, a decrease from the 16.7 million SCI spent last 
year. 

 
 
Champagne said that SCI has made an effort to reduce those expenses, but they should see a reasonable 
upswing in the fourth quarter as most executive compensation and bonuses accrue during that time. 
Following that, he said they can be expected to increase reasonably, as expected, based on expansion 
and market conditions. [Emphasis added]. 

 
 
97. The foregoing statements made by defendants Waltrip and Champagne were materially false and 
misleading at the time they were made because these defendants knew, or were reckless in not knowing, 
and failed to disclose that: 

(a) far from enjoying a unique advantage over its competitors in addressing the slowdown in North 
American deaths by virtue of acquisition and cost cutting, SCI was continuing to experience drastic 
deterioration in its funeral services profit margins as a result of its backlog of inadequately funded 
and/or dormant and underperforming preneed mortuary trust assets; 

(b) the acquisition of American Memorial and the formation of SCI Financial Services, Inc. did not 
address SCI's backlog of unprofitable preneed funeral service contracts; and 

(c) the "booming growth" and increased revenues from SCI's new financial activities were part of SCI's 
scheme to mask its increasingly deteriorating profit margins in its preneed funeral services business, and 
the touted increase in the number of funerals "from the backlog" of preneed contracts was, in fact, 
fueling the profit margin deterioration, and was not, as represented, a positive development for SCI. 
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98. On November 16, 1998, SCI filed its Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998 with the 
SEC (the "1998 Q3 Form 10-Q"). The 1998 Q3 Form 10-Q was also incorporated by reference into the 
Registration Statement/Prospectus for SCI's acquisition of ECI, filed on November 19, 1998. The 1998 
Q3 Form 10-Q was signed by defendant Champagne and contained the following materially false and 
misleading statements in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements: 

Prearranged Funeral Activities 

The Company sells price guaranteed prearranged funeral contracts through various programs providing 
for future funeral services at prices prevailing when the agreements are signed. Payments under these 
contracts are placed in trust accounts (pursuant to applicable law) or are used to pay premiums on life 
insurance policies. . . . Trust earnings and increasing insurance benefits are accrued and deferred 
until the service is performed, at which time these funds are also recognized in funeral revenues 
and are intended to cover future increases in the cost of providing a price guaranteed funeral 
service. . . . The total value of unperformed prearranged funerals at September 30, 1998 was $3,395,916 
($3,163,357 at December 31, 1997). [Emphasis added.] 

 
 
1998 Q3 Form 10-Q at 7-8 

* * * 

99. The foregoing statements were materially false and misleading when made because SCI and the 
Individual Defendants knew, or were reckless or negligent in not knowing, and failed to disclose that: 

(a) SCI's backlog of prearranged funeral contracts included a material number of contracts that were not 
sold "at prices prevailing when the agreements were signed," but at discounts to those prices; and 

(b) The funds from many of SCI's mortuary trusts did not "cover" or exceed the cost of their related 
"price guaranteed" funeral services, and as a result, SCI was and would continue to experience 
drastically deteriorating profit margins for its funeral service business. 

100. The 1998 Q3 Form 10-Q also stated in the MD&A section, that: 

Prearranged Funeral Services 

The Company has a marketing program to sell prearranged funeral contracts and the funds collected are 
generally held in trust or are used to purchase life insurance or annuity contracts. The principal amount 
of each such prearranged funeral contract will be received in cash by a Company funeral service location 
at the time the funeral is performed. Earnings on trust funds and increasing benefits under 
insurance and annuity funded contracts also increase the amount of cash to be received upon 
performance of the funeral and are intended to cover future increases in the cost of providing a 
price guaranteed funeral service as well as any selling costs. During 1997, the Company completed a 
review of the prearranged trust investment process which included an asset/liability study. This has 
resulted in a new investment program which entails the consolidation of multiple trustees, the use 
of institutional managers with differing investment styles and consolidated performance 
monitoring and tracking. This new program targets a real return in excess of the amount 
necessary to cover future increases in the cost of providing a price guaranteed funeral service as 
well as any selling costs. . . . 
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* * * 

 
 
Prearranged funeral service sales afford the Company the opportunity to both protect current market 
share and mix as well as expand market share in certain markets. The Company believes this will 
stimulate future revenue growth. Prearranged funeral services fulfilled as a percent of the total North 
American funerals performed annually approximates 25% and is expected to grow, thereby making the 
total number of funerals performed more predictable. [Emphasis added.] 

 
 
1998 Q3 Form 10-Q at 19-20. 

 
 
101. The foregoing statements were materially false and misleading at the time they were made because 
SCI and the Individual Defendants knew, or were reckless or negligent in not knowing, and failed to 
disclose that: 

(a) SCI's backlog of prearranged funeral contracts included a material number of contracts that were 
backed by mortuary trusts that were inadequately funded and/or had assets that were not actively 
invested to ensure growth adequate to cover "the cost of providing a price guaranteed funeral service"; 

(b) The Preneed Study showed that a material number of funeral homes acquired by SCI failed to 
actively manage their mortuary trust assets, and, as a result, a material number of SCI's funeral services 
had been, and would continue to be, performed at significant losses, resulting in an increasingly sharp 
erosion in SCI's profit margins for funeral services; 

(c) SCI's "new investment program" was not actively managing the vast majority of the preneed trust 
assets SCI had acquired by purchasing independent private funeral homes, and was not obtaining "a real 
return in excess of the amount necessary to cover" the costs to SCI of providing a material number of 
prearranged guaranteed price funeral services; and 

(d) the increasing percentage of "at need" funerals attributable to "prearranged funeral services fulfilled" 
was, far from being the positive development represented in the 1988 Q3 Form 10-Q, a reflection of the 
increasing number of unprofitable funeral services being performed pursuant to preneed contracts 
backed by underfunded and/or dormant and underperforming mortuary trust assets, which was fueling 
SCI's drastically deteriorating profit margins. 

102. On or about November 19, 1998, defendants Waltrip, Champagne and Heiligbrodt, caused SCI to 
file the materially false and misleading Registration Statement/Prospectus with the SEC in connection 
with SCI's acquisition of ECI. The Registration Statement/Prospectus was signed by each of the 
foregoing defendants, declared effective by the SEC on November 20, 1998, and incorporated SCI's 
1998 Q2 Form 10-Q, and 1998 Q3 Form 10-Q by reference. 

103. The Registration Statement/Prospectus contained numerous materially false and misleading 
statements and omitted to disclose numerous material facts that were required to be disclosed in order to 
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render the statements made therein not materially misleading at the time it was declared effective, 
including, by incorporation, the materially misleading statements contained in SCI's 1998 Q2 Form 10-
Q and in SCI's 1998 Q3 Form 10-Q, which are set forth in detail above. 

104. The Registration Statement/Prospectus at pages 40-41 also contained the following materially false 
and misleading statements: 

SCI's strategy is to: 

 
 
• continue to expand through the acquisition and construction, both domestically and internationally of 
funeral homes, cemeteries and crematoria in areas with demographics that SCI believes to be favorable; 

• increase the operating margins of its existing and acquired facilities by having those facilities share 
resources pursuant to SCI's cluster strategy; 

• increase revenue per location through the merchandising of a broad line of funeral and cemetery 
products and services, both on a preneed and at-need basis; and 

• increase future volume and revenues through the sale of prearranged funeral services. 

 
 

� The foregoing statements were materially false and misleading at the time they were made 
because SCI and the Individual Defendants knew, or were reckless or negligent in not knowing, 
and failed to disclose that:  

(a) SCI had been, and would continue to, suffer from materially deteriorating profit margins as a result 
of its enormous backlog of preneed funeral service contracts that were backed by inadequately funded 
and/or dormant and underperforming mortuary trust assets; and 

(b) those deteriorating profit margins and the material adverse impact they had on SCI's overall profits 
and earnings would not be reversed by SCI's touted strategies of: continued expansion through 
"acquisition and construction"; having facilities "share resources pursuant to SCI's cluster strategy"; 
increased "merchandising"; or increased sales of "prearranged funeral services." 

� The Merger Agreement, which was made an exhibit to the Registration Statement/Prospectus and 
incorporated therein by reference, contained the following statement at pages A15-16, in the form 
of a representation by SCI:  

there has not been any event, occurrence, development or state of circumstances or facts which has had, 
or could reasonably be anticipated to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect. 

 
 

� The Merger Agreement provided that this statement "shall be true and correct in all material 
respects . . . as of the Closing Date" as a condition to the consummation of the merger.  

� On January 19, 1999, the merger was consummated, and, as of that date, SCI, by virtue of, inter 
alia, its increasingly deteriorating funeral service profit margins, had suffered a Material Adverse 
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Effect, as reflected by its poor earnings per share in the fourth quarter of 1998, which ended 
almost three weeks prior to the closing of the merger.  

� SCI and the Individual Defendants' failure to disclose the existence of Material Adverse Effects 
which they knew, or were reckless or negligent in not knowing, at the time that the Registration 
Statement/Prospectus was filed with the SEC and declared effective and, as a result the 
Registration Statement/Prospectus was materially false and misleading.  Further, on or about 
January 19, 1999, by announcing in a press release that the merger had been completed, SCI and 
the Individual Defendants impliedly told investors that the representation that there had been no 
material adverse changes was true as of the closing of the merger when, in fact, they knew or 
recklessly disregarded the true and undisclosed facts regarding the adverse earnings and causes 
thereof.  

Additional Scienter Allegations 

Defendants' Motives to Misrepresent SCI's Financial Condition 

� Defendants were highly motivated to conceal the true reasons behind SCI's funeral margin 
contraction and the negative impact that SCI's unprofitable multi-million dollar preneed funeral 
backlog had already had, and was continuing to have, on SCI's profit margins and earnings. By 
doing so, defendants were able to cause the market price of SCI's to become and remain materially 
artificially inflated (artificially depressed in the case of put options) throughout the Class Period. 
Because the consideration paid by SCI to ECI stockholders was SCI common stock, SCI was able 
to effectively purchase ECI with "watered stock," thereby saving SCI millions.  

� As alleged above, the ECI acquisition was critical to the Company's ability to turn around its 
unprofitable preneed business and therefore represented significant motivation to defraud Class 
members.  

� Under Section 9.1 of the Merger Agreement, ECI had the right to terminate the Merger 
Agreement "if the representations and warranties of [SCI] shall fail to be true and correct in all 
material respects . . . ." Thus, prior to negotiating the deal with ECI, SCI was motivated to 
maintain SCI's stock price in an effort to acquire ECI in a stock-for-stock transaction for less than 
ECI's true value. After the Merger Agreement was executed, but before the deal closed, SCI was 
motivated to conceal the adverse developments from ECI to prevent ECI from terminating the 
Merger Agreement. Disclosure of SCI's unprofitable preneed business would have constituted a 
Material Adverse Effect, as contemplated by the Merger Agreement. Had SCI admitted the 
existence of the Company's problems, ECI would have been able to terminate the Merger 
Agreement under Section 9.1.  

� In addition, defendants were motivated to conceal the truth concerning SCI's funeral margin 
contraction in order to obtain and maintain favorable ratings on the debt securities that SCI had 
registered with the SEC but not yet issued.  

� In particular, in a prospectus filed with the SEC on May 29, 1998, SCI registered to sell up to $1 
billion of debt, common stock and warrants to the public from "time-to-time." Similarly, in a 
prospectus filed with the SEC on October 15, 1998, SCI registered to sell an additional $500 
million in SCI preferred stock. The debt and equity securities were issued pursuant to shelf 
registration statements that were declared effective by the SEC on June 10, 1998 and October 29, 
1998, respectively. As a result of filing the shelf registration statements, SCI was able to avail 
itself of much-needed funds to finance the Company's acquisitions and operations.  

� The omissions concerning SCI's unprofitable preneed business ensured that the debt securities 
would be priced as attractively as possible to SCI upon issuance. Favorable pricing allowed SCI to 
save millions of dollars in interest payments that would otherwise have been paid to bondholders 
had SCI's debt instruments been assigned lower ratings by credit rating agencies such as Standard 
& Poor's. Also, the omissions would ensure that SCI stock and warrants would be sold to the 
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investing public at the highest possible prices.  
� The defendants' omissions about the unprofitable preneed business had the desired effect on the 

public, particularly Standard & Poor's ("S&P"). On October 27, 1998, shortly after defendants 
announced SCI's favorable third quarter results which omitted from disclosure facts about the 
unprofitable preneed business, S&P issued a press release praising SCI's "well-established and 
diverse geographic market positions, and strong industry characteristics [which] should enable the 
company to generate predictable cash flow." Most importantly, S&P affirmed its triple-B plus 
corporate credit, unsecured debt, and bank loan ratings as well as its triple B plus subordinated 
debt rating and it's A-2 commercial paper rating on SCI. S&P also assigned its preliminary triple 
B plus/triple B rating to the Company's debt registered pursuant to the shelf registration statement. 

� Thus, SCI's ability to sustain growth through continued acquisition activity was intimately tied to 
its ability to maintain favorable credit ratings and also periodically issue equity for cash flow 
purposes. By publicly making materially false and misleading statements and omitting from 
disclosure material facts, defendants had been able to artificially increase and maintain the inflated 
price of SCI common stock, maintain favorable credit ratings, and increase SCI's shelf registration 
for a announcement of a combined debt and equity offering of $1.5 billion.  

The Individual Defendants Knew The True Financial Condition of SCI 

� SCI's earnings shortfall for the fourth quarter 1998 was an extraordinary event in the financial 
history of SCI. Prior to the fourth quarter of 1998, SCI's management repeatedly forecasted 
current quarterly financial performance with extraordinary accuracy.  

� SCI's quarterly results are particularly easy for management to estimate prior to a quarter's end 
because of a number of factors generally applicable to companies in the death care field and 
because of certain factors particularly applicable to SCI. Initially, death care providers have an 
extremely high level of recurring, budgeted, fixed costs that generally do not fluctuate greatly with 
demand for a company's services. Unlike companies in other industries, death care providers 
cannot respond to increased demand by delaying the period in which a service will be provided; 
obviously, a death care provider cannot promise to fill an order "in a week or two" and still retain 
a customer. The SCI 1998 Form 10-K explains, "[t]he funeral business has a high fixed cost 
structure (approximately 80%-90% of funeral costs) that does not easily lend itself to reduction 
during periods of slower revenue growth."  

� Additionally, demand for death services is steadier than almost any other industry. Demand for 
death care services may fluctuate somewhat as a result of disease patterns or seasonal changes, but 
demand is not affected by changes in consumer taste or technological developments.  

� SCI is also able to accurately measure its current quarterly performance because SCI's Falcon 
system reports North American cemetery and funeral home sales on a daily basis. This enables 
SCI to determine accurately the level of funeral and cemetery sales at any point during a quarter.  

� Further, it reasonably could have been anticipated that the declining profitability caused by SCI's 
undisclosed backlog of inadequately funded and/or dormant and underperforming preneed trust 
assets would continue into the fourth quarter. Indeed, as a result of the increasingly deteriorating 
profitability caused by inadequately funded preneed contracts, costs had been steadily increasing 
as a percentage of revenue throughout the entire 1998 year. In the first quarter 1998, SCI's costs 
were approximately 68% of revenue; in the second quarter 1998 costs were approximately 72% of 
revenue; in the third quarter 1998 costs were approximately 76% of revenue; and in the fourth 
quarter 1998 costs were approximately 82% of revenue.  

The Truth Is Revealed 

� On January 26, 1999, just five business days after SCI and ECI jointly announced the completion 
of the Merger, SCI shocked the investment community by issuing a press release which stated:  
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[SCI], the world's largest funeral and cemetery company, announced today that it expects diluted 
earnings per share for the fourth quarter of 1998 to be lower than current analyst expectations. 

 
 
SCI's fourth quarter 1998 gross profits were $141,246,000. This represented a 19% decline from SCI's 
third quarter 1998 gross profits and a 24% decline from SCI's fourth quarter 1997 gross profits. SCI's 
earnings per share for fourth quarter 1998 were $.23. This was 28% below EPS for third quarter 1998; 
36% below SCI's EPS for the fourth quarter 1997; and 45% below the average forecast or "consensus 
estimate" for fourth quarter EPS by analysts who followed SCI. These "consensus estimates" were based 
on misleading information given directly by SCI to professional market analysts. Defendants 
deceptively failed to disclose to analysts, the market, or to ECI or its shareholders in connection with the 
negotiation and closing of its acquisition of ECI, the grave and worsening losses in its preneed funeral 
business. 

� The market's reaction to the January 26, 1999 disclosure was swift and severe. The price of SCI 
common stock plunged from $34 7/16 on January 25 to $19 1/8 on trading of over 36 million 
shares, a one-day decline of $15.3125 or 44%. This price decline also effectively cut the 
consideration paid for each share of ECI common stock in the merger virtually in half. Pursuant to 
the Merger Agreement, ECI shareholders received SCI common stock that was worth $25.53 
when the deal closed, in exchange for each share of ECI common stock they owned. Following 
SCI's January 26, 1999 disclosure, that same SCI common stock was worth only $12.79, 
effectively reducing the total consideration paid for ECI from $556 million to $278 million. As of 
September 1, 1999, SCI's common stock was trading at or about $14.00 per share.  

� On February 9, 1999, the Company issued a press release purporting to explain the earnings 
shortfall. The primary reasons cited for the shortfall were decreased revenues and increased costs. 
However, the true reason for the earnings surprise was revealed later by defendant Heiligbrodt.  

� Indeed, the Company and defendant Heiligbrodt have admitted that the earnings shortfalls 
reported for fiscal year 1998 resulted from losses on SCI's preneed business which was 
information known to defendants throughout the Class Period. A story published by the Death 
Care Business Advisor on February 23, 1999 stated in part:  

Because the company said that it is now selling preneed at prices which, combined with its investment 
strategy should lead to increased at-need earnings, SCI is understandably bullish on preneed. 
Especially when it estimates that only 30 percent of the people who buy preneed through an SCI facility 
would be an SCI atneed customer. 

For the time being, though, preneed is hurting company profit margins. Because SCI does not count 
preneed funds in its earnings until services are delivered, many of the 27 percent of SCI calls in 1998 
that were the result of a preneed sale were from policies sold 12-15 years ago. 

 
 
According to SCI, many of those policies were sold by third parties, such as companies later purchased 
by SCI. According to [defendant] Heiligbrodt, the at need value of many of the preneed plans sold 
in the 1980s is about 20 percent less than the company presently charges for its services. [Emphasis 
added.] 
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� Following up on its February 23, 1999 article, Death Care Business Advisor published another 
story on August 12, 1999 entitled "SCI Looking For Comeback In 2000; Company Results Miss 
Targets As Expected; Management Expects Flat Earnings in 1999" stating, in part:  

SCI has said in the past that it loses money on some of its preneed services 

because the contract was sold at too low a price by a funeral home or death care company later bought 
by SCI. 

  

* * * 

 
 
When pursuing preneed, it is worth considering that a large percentage of the contracts still become at-
need within 5 years of purchase, not leaving a lot of time to make up the seller's commission and 
inflationary price increases, to ensure the preneed seller of the same profit ordinarily achieved from an 
atneed funeral. 

 
 
While these numbers are not likely to slow the boom in the sale of preneed funeral contract, they are 
worth looking over. Preneed sales are supposed to ensure a successful future, not serve as a drain on 
company profit. 

PLAINTIFFS' INVESTIGATION 

� Plaintiffs' allegations set forth herein are based on a thorough investigation conducted by and 
through their attorneys. Such investigation included a review and analysis of:  

a. SCI's filings with the SEC both prior to and throughout the Class Period; 

b. the Company's Annual Reports to shareholders both prior to and during the Class Period; 

c. The Company's press releases and other publicly disseminated statements made by defendants prior 
to, during, and following the Class Period; 

d. reports, articles, and other written materials concerning the Company and the subject matter of this 
complaint; 

e. analyst reports and investor advisory service reports; and 

f. consultations with forensic accountants, former company employees and other individuals 
knowledgeable about the Company's business, operations and services. 

INAPPLICABILITY OF STATUTORY SAFE HARBOR 

129. The statutory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statements pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 78u-5 
does not apply to any of the false statements pleaded in this Complaint. The statements alleged to be 
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false and misleading herein all relate to then-existing facts and conditions known to defendants. In 
addition, to the extent that defendants may claim that certain statements alleged to be false and 
misleading may be characterized as forward looking, (i) such statements were not identified as "forward-
looking statements" when made; (ii) there was no statement made with respect to any of those 
representations forming the basis of this complaint that actual results "could differ materially from those 
projected"; and (iii) there were no meaningful cautionary statements identifying important factors that 
could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the purportedly forward-looking statements. 
Alternatively, to the extent that the statutory safe harbor does apply to any forward-looking statements 
pleaded herein, defendants are liable for those false forward-looking statements because at the time each 
of those forward-looking statements was made, the particular speaker had actual knowledge that the 
particular forward-looking statement was false, and/or the forward-looking statement was authorized 
and/or approved by an executive officer of SCI who knew that those statements were false when made. 

FRAUD ON THE MARKET PRESUMPTION 

130. At all relevant times, the market for SCI securities was an efficient market for the following 
reasons, among others: 

a. SCI common stock met the requirements for listing, and was listed and actively traded, on the New 
York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE"), a highly efficient market; 

b. As a regulated issuer, SCI filed periodic public reports with the SEC and the NYSE; 

c. SCI was followed by securities analysts employed by major brokerage firms who wrote reports which 
were distributed to the sales force and customers of their respective brokerage firms. Each of these 
reports was publicly available and entered the public marketplace. The securities firms that followed the 
Company during the Class Period, included, inter alia, Morgan Stanley Dean Witter, ABN AMRO; 
Merrill Lynch; J.P. Morgan; Nations Banc Montgomery Securities; Wasserstein Perella; and Bear, 
Stearns; and 

d. SCI regularly communicated with public investors by means of established market communication 
mechanisms, including through regular dissemination of press releases on the national circuits of major 
newswire services and through other wide-ranging public disclosures, such as communications with the 
financial press and other similar reporting services. Each of these releases was publicly available and 
entered the public marketplace. 

As a result, the market for SCI common stock promptly digested current information with respect to SCI 
from all publicly-available sources and all such information was reflected in market prices of SCI 
common stock. Under these circumstances, all those who purchased or otherwise acquired SCI securities 
during the Class Period suffered similar injury through their acquisition of such securities at artificially 
inflated prices and a presumption of reliance applies. 

COUNT I 

Against All Defendants For Violation of Section 11 of the Securities Act 

131. Plaintiffs incorporate each of the foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein, except to the 
extent such allegations charge the defendants with intentional or reckless conduct. For the purposes of 
this Count, plaintiffs expressly do not allege that any defendant acted with scienter or fraudulent intent, 
which is not an element of a Section 11 claim. 
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132. This Count is asserted against all defendants for violations of § 11 of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. 
§ 77(k). 

133. This count is brought on behalf of those Class members who exchanged shares of ECI common 
stock for shares of SCI common stock in connection with the Merger or held employee options to 
purchase ECI common stock under a stock plan of ECI that became options to purchase SCI common 
stock as a result of the Merger. 

134. SCI is the issuer of the stock via the Registration Statement/Prospectus filed with the SEC in 
connection with the Merger. The Individual Defendants are signatories of the Registration 
Statement/Prospectus. 

135. The Registration Statement/Prospectus contained untrue statements of material fact and/or omitted 
to disclose material facts required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements made therein 
not misleading as alleged herein. 

136. Defendants participated in the preparation of, issued, caused to be issued and participated in the 
issuance of the materially false and misleading Registration Statement/Prospectus, which was inaccurate 
and misrepresented or failed to disclose, inter alia, material facts concerning SCI's business and 
prospects, as set forth above. 

137. The Individual Defendants as directors and/or officers of SCI and as signatories of the Registration 
Statement/Prospectus that was filed with the SEC were responsible for the preparation of the 
Registration Statement/Prospectus and failed to make a reasonable investigation or possess reasonable 
grounds for believing that the representations contained in the Registration Statement/Prospectus, were 
true and that they disclosed all material facts. 

138. The Individual Defendants are primarily liable under Section 11 of the Securities Act and are also 
secondarily liable as controlling persons of SCI under Section 15 of the Securities Act. 

139. As a direct and proximate result of the false and misleading statements in the Registration 
Statement/Prospectus, plaintiffs and the Class acquired SCI securities issued pursuant to the defective 
Registration Statement/Prospectus. 

140. Accordingly, plaintiffs and the Class have sustained damages as a result of the violations of Section 
11 of the Securities Act by defendants and are entitled to recover damages therefore pursuant to Section 
11(e) of the Act. 

141. At the time they approved the Merger and acquired SCI common stock, plaintiffs and the class 
were without knowledge of the untruths and omissions alleged herein. 

142. The action was brought within one year after the discovery of the untrue statements and omissions 
and within three years after SCI stock was offered to the public in the Merger. 

COUNT II 

 
 

Against SCI for Violation of Section 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act 
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143. Plaintiffs incorporate each of the foregoing allegations as if fully set forth herein, except to the 
extent that such allegations charge the defendants with intentional or reckless misconduct. For the 
purposes of this Count, plaintiffs expressly do not allege that any defendant acted with scienter or 
fraudulent intent, which is not an element of a Section 12(a)(2) claim. 

144. This count is asserted against SCI for violation of Section 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. 
§771. 

145. This count is brought on behalf of those Class members who exchanged shares of ECI common 
stock for shares of SCI common stock in connection with the Merger or held employee options to 
purchase ECI common stock under a stock plan of ECI that became options to purchase SCI common 
stock as a result of the Merger. 

146. SCI was a seller, offeror, and/or solicitor of sales of the SCI common stock for its financial benefit 
pursuant to the Registration Statement/Prospectus in connection with the Merger. 

147. The Registration Statement/Prospectus contained materially false and misleading statements and 
omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements, in light of the circumstances 
under which they were made, not misleading. 

148. None of the defendants named in this Count made a reasonable investigation or possessed 
reasonable grounds for the belief that the statements contained in the Registration Statement/Prospectus 
were true, without omissions of any material facts and were not misleading. 

149. Plaintiffs, individually and representatively, hereby elect to rescind and tender to SCI those 
securities that plaintiffs and other members of the Class continue to own, in return for the consideration 
paid for those securities together with interest thereon. 

150. Plaintiffs and members of the Class who have sold their SCI common stock are entitled to 
rescissory damages. 

151. The action was brought within one year after the discovery of the untrue statements and omissions 
and within three years after SCI common stock was offered to the public. 

COUNT III 

Against the Individual Defendants for 

Violation of Section 15 of the Securities Act 

 
 
152. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege each and every allegation contained above as if fully set forth herein, 
except to the extent that such allegations charge the Individual Defendants with intentional or reckless 
conduct. For purposes of this Count, plaintiffs do not allege than any Individual Defendant acted with 
scienter or fraudulent intent, which is not an element of controlling persons' liability under Section 15. 

153. Count III is brought pursuant to Section 15 of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77o, against the 
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Individual Defendants. SCI is liable to plaintiffs and the Class as an issuer under Section 11 and as a 
seller under Section 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act, as previously set forth in Counts I and II above. 

154. This count is brought on behalf of those Class members who exchanged shares of ECI common 
stock for shares of SCI common stock in connection with the Merger or held employee options to 
purchase ECI common stock under a stock plan of ECI that became options to purchase SCI common 
stock as a result of the Merger. 

155. The Individual Defendants were controlling persons of SCI by virtue of their positions as senior 
officers and directors of the Company. As a result, the Individual Defendants are jointly and severably 
liable with and to the same extent as SCI under Section 15 of the Securities Act for SCI's primary 
violations of Sections 11 and 12(2)(a) of the Securities Act. 

COUNT IV 

Against All Defendants for 

Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 

 
 
156. Plaintiffs incorporate the foregoing allegations as if fully set forth herein. This claim is asserted 
against SCI and the Individual Defendants. 

157. These defendants, and each of them, carried out a plan, scheme and course of conduct which was 
intended to and did: (i) deceive the investing public, including plaintiffs and other Class members, as 
alleged herein; and (ii) artificially inflate (artificially deflate in the case of put options) and maintain the 
market price of SCI securities. In furtherance of this unlawful scheme, plan and course of conduct, these 
defendants, and each of them, took the actions set forth herein. 

158. Defendants employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; made untrue statements of 
material fact and/or omitted to state material facts necessary to make the statements made not 
misleading; and engaged in acts, practices and a course of business which operated as a fraud and deceit 
upon Class members in an effort to maintain artificially high market prices for SCI's common stock in 
violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. These 
defendants are sued either as primary participants in the wrongful and illegal conduct charged herein or 
as controlling persons. 

159. In addition to the duties of full disclosure imposed on defendants as a result of their making of 
affirmative statements and reports, or participation in the making of affirmative statements and reports 
to the investing public, the defendants had a duty to promptly disseminate truthful information that 
would be material to investors so that the market prices of the Company's publicly traded common stock 
would be based on truthful, complete and accurate information. 

160. Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and indirectly, by the use of means and 
instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a continuous 
course of conduct to conceal adverse material information about the Company's financial results, 
business, operations, and future outlook as specified herein. These defendants employed devices, 
schemes and artifices to defraud, while in possession of material adverse non-public information and 
engaged in acts, practices, and a course of conduct as alleged herein in an effort to mislead purchasers of 
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SCI's securities concerning the Company's business prospects and financial condition, which included 
the making of, or the participation in the making of, untrue statements of material facts and omitting to 
state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made about the Company's financial and 
business operations in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, as set 
forth more particularly herein, and engaged in transactions, practices and a course of business which 
operated as a fraud and deceit upon Class members. 

161. Defendants had actual knowledge of the misrepresentation and omissions of material facts set forth 
herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed to ascertain and to disclose such 
facts, even though such facts were available to them. Defendants' material misrepresentations and/or 
omissions were done knowingly or recklessly and for the purpose and effect of concealing SCI's 
operations and business affairs from the investing public and supporting the artificially inflated price of 
its securities. 

162. As a result of the dissemination of the materially false and misleading information and failure to 
disclose material facts, as set forth above, the market price of SCI securities was artificially inflated 
(artificially deflated in the case of put options) throughout the Class Period. In ignorance of the fact that 
the market price of SCI's securities were artificially inflated, and relying directly or indirectly on the 
false and misleading statements made by defendants, or upon the integrity of the market in which the 
securities trade, and the truth of any representations made to appropriate agencies as the investing 
public, at the times at which any statements were made, and/or on the absence of material adverse 
information that was known to or recklessly disregarded by defendants but not disclosed in public 
statements by defendants, plaintiffs and the other members of the Class purchased SCI's securities at 
artificially high prices and were damaged thereby. 

163. At the time of said misrepresentations and omissions, plaintiffs and the other members of the Class 
were ignorant of their falsity, and believed them to be true. Had plaintiffs and the other member of the 
Class and the marketplace known of the true nature of the operations of the Company and the 
noncompliance with federal law, which were not disclosed by defendants, plaintiffs and the other 
members of the Class would not have acquired their SCI securities, or, if they had acquired such 
securities, they would not have done so at the artificially inflated (artificially deflated in the case of put 
options) prices which they paid. 

164. By virtue of the foregoing, defendants have violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, and Rule 
10b-5 promulgated there under. 

165. As a direct and proximate result of these defendants' wrongful conduct, plaintiffs and the other 
members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their purchases of SCI securities. 

COUNT V 

Against the Individual Defendants for 

Violation of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act 

166. Plaintiffs incorporate the foregoing allegations as if fully set forth herein. This claim is asserted 
against the Individual Defendants. 

167. The Individual Defendants acted as controlling persons of SCI within the meaning of Section 20(a) 
of the Exchange Act as alleged herein. By virtue of their stock ownership, executive positions and Board 

Page 42 of 54

9/20/2004http://www.whafh.com/cases/complaint/svcecmplt.htm



membership, as alleged above, the Individual Defendants had the power to influence and control and did 
influence and control, directly or indirectly, the operations of the Company, and possessed the power 
and/or ability to control each of the wrongful acts and practices complained of herein, including the 
content and dissemination of the various statements which plaintiffs contend are false and misleading. 
The Individual Defendants were provided with or had unlimited access to copies of the Company's 
internal reports, press releases, public filings and other statements alleged by plaintiffs to be misleading 
prior to and/or shortly after these statements were issued and had the ability to prevent the issuance of 
the statements or cause the statements to be corrected. 

168. In particular, the Individual Defendants had direct involvement in the day-to-day operations of the 
Company and therefore, are presumed to have had the power to control or influence the particular 
transactions giving rise to the securities violations as alleged herein, and exercised the same. 

169. As set forth above, SCI violated Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 by its acts and omissions as alleged 
in this Complaint. By virtue of their positions as controlling persons of SCI, the Individual Defendants 
are liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. As a direct and proximate result of defendants' 
wrongful conduct, plaintiffs and the other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with 
their purchases of SCI securities. 

COUNT VI 

Against SCI for Violations 

of Section 20A of the Exchange Act 

170. Plaintiffs incorporate the foregoing allegations as if fully set forth herein. This claim is asserted 
against SCI. This count is brought on behalf of those Class members who exchanged shares of ECI 
common stock for shares of SCI common stock in connection with the Merger or held employee options 
to purchase ECI common stock under a stock plan of ECI that became options to purchase SCI common 
stock as a result of the Merger. 

171. The exchange of SCI stock for ECI stock pursuant to the Merger Agreement constituted a sale of 
securities within the meaning of Section 20A of the Exchange Act. 15 U.S.C. § 78t-1. At the time of the 
exchange of SCI stock for ECI stock, SCI was in possession of material, non-public information 
concerning the financial condition of SCI. As a result of SCI's failure to disclose the material, non-
public information in its possession, SCI was able to negotiate a higher ratio of exchange of SCI stock 
for ECI stock. 

172. By virtue of the foregoing, SCI has violated Section 20A of the Exchange Act. 

173. As a direct and proximate result of SCI's wrongful conduct, members of the Class suffered 
damages in connection with their exchange of ECI stock and ECI options for SCI stock and SCI options. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, plaintiffs, on their own behalf and on behalf of the other members of the Class, 
respectfully request that this Court enter judgment in their favor and against defendants as follows: 

(a) Awarding plaintiffs and the other members of the Class rescission of their shares and/or the 
appropriate measure of damages; 
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(b) Awarding plaintiffs and the other members of the Class prejudgment and post-judgment interest, as 
well as their reasonable attorneys' fees, expert witness fees and other costs and expenses; and 

(c) Awarding such other relief as this Court may deem just and proper. 

JURY DEMAND 

Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury. 

DATED: September 3, 1999 

Respectfully submitted, 
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1835 Market Street, Suite 320 

Philadelphia, PA 19103 

 
 
Hoeffner, Bilek & Eidman 

Thomas E. Bilek 

720 Lyric Office Center 

440 Louisiana, Suite 720 

Houston, TX 77002 

 
 
Jaroslawicz & Jaros 

David Jaroslawicz 

150 William Street 

New York, NY 10038 

 
 
Kaplan, Kilsheimer & Fox LLP 

Robert N. Kaplan 

Peter A. Lennon 

Janine R. Azriliant 

685 Third Avenue, 26th Floor
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New York, NY 10017 

 
 
Kenneth A. Elan 

217 Broadway, Suite 404 

New York, NY 10007 

 
 
Kirby McInerney & Squire 

Jeffrey H. Squire 

Ira M. Press 

830 Third Avenue, 10th Floor
 

New York, NY 10022 

 
 
Law Offices of Clayton E. Dark, Jr. 

Clayton E. Dark, Jr. 

P.O. Box 2207 

Lufkin, TX 75902-2207 

 
 
Law Offices of Dennis J. Johnson 

Dennis J. Johnson 

1690 Williston Road 

South Burlington, VT 05403 

 
 
Lockridge, Grindal, Nauen & Hostein, PLLP 

Richard A. Lockridge 

Karen M. Hanson 
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100 Washington Avenue South, Suite 2200 

Minneapolis, MN 55401 

 
 
Lowey Dannenberg Bemporad 

& Selinger PC 

Richard Bemporad 

David C. Harrison 

The Gateway - 11th Floor
 

One North Lexington Avenue 

White Plains, NY 10601-1714 

 
 
Lynn Stodghill Melchimer 

and Tillotson, LLP 

Thomas M. McIsheimer 

M. Brett Johnson 

750 N. Pearl Street, Suite 1400 

Dallas, TX 75201 

 
 
Rabin & Peckel LLP 

Marvin L. Frank 

Joseph V. McBride 

275 Madison Avenue, 34th Floor
 

New York, NY 10016 

 
 
Schiffrin & Barroway, LLP 
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Andrew L. Barroway 

David Kessler 

Three Bala Plaza East, Suite 400 

Bala Cynwyd, Penn. 19004 

 
 
Scott & Scott 

Neil Rothstein 

108 Norwich Avenue 

P.O. Box 192 

Cochester, CT 06415 

 
 
Scott, Douglass & McConnico, LLP 

Stephen E. McConnico 

600 Congress Avenue, 15th Floor
 

Austin, TX 78701-2334 

 
 
Spector & Roseman, PC 

Eugen A. Spector 

Jeffrey L. Kodroff 

1818 Market Street, Suite 2500 

Philadelphia, PA 19103 

 
 
Stull Stull & Brody 

Jules Brody 

Aaron Brody 
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6 East 45th Street 

New York, NY 10017 

 
 
Susman Godfrey LLP 

Kenneth S. Marks 

5100 First Interstate Bank Plaza 

1000 Louisiana 

Houston, TX 77002-5096 

 
 
The Olsen Law Firm 

Kurt Olsen 

2121 K. Street, N.W. Suite 800 

Washington, D.C. 20037 

 
 
Weiss & Yourman 

Joseph H. Weiss 

551 Fifth Avenue, Suite 1600 

New York, NY 10176 

 
 
Whittington, VonSternberg, Emerson 

& Wilsher, LLP 

John G. Emerson, Jr. 

2600 South Gessner, Suite 600 

Houston, TX 77063 
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Wolf, Haldenstein, Adler, Freeman 

& Herz, LLP 

Fred T. Isquith 

Robert Abrams 

270 Madison Avenue 

New York, NY 10016 

 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiffs 
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